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Theme Corporate
S T A T E M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N

Engagement
A fundamental aspect of being the energy that 
powers the nation’s success is understanding what 
the nation’s goals are.  That requires engagement. 
We also need to keep our team fully engaged about 
our mission, as we put our energies into powering 
the nation’s success.  

Although engagement is a normal part of what we 
do, 2019 saw an extra push in that area. 

We engaged stakeholders on their expectations 
of us, as we get ready to map out a new strategic 
vision looking towards 2035.

We were more purposeful in engaging the LUCELEC 
Team for greater harmony and to more effectively 
channel our collective energies to achieving our 
goals.

We also engaged our communities, through various 
agencies and the volunteer efforts of our team 
members, to address some of their most pressing 
needs and critical challenges. 

In all of this, we are engaging new technologies, 
finding new approaches to doing things, and new 
ways of delivering value to all our stakeholders. And 
in that, we are fully engaged - always.

Vision
To be the energy that powers our nation’s success

Mission
We deliver efficient energy services that are safe, 
reliable, and environmentally responsible. We meet 
the expectations of our customers, shareholders 
and employees and we are a catalyst for social and 
economic development in Saint Lucia.

Registered Office
LUCELEC Building
Sans Soucis, John Compton Highway
Castries , Saint Lucia 
Telephone Number: 758-457-4400 
Fax Number: 758-457-4409 
Email Address: connected@lucelec.com
Website: www.lucelec.com 

Attorneys-At-Law
McNamara & Company
20 Micoud Street 
Castries, Saint Lucia 

Auditors
BDO Saint Lucia
Mercury Court, Choc
Castries, Saint Lucia

Bankers
FirstCaribbean International Bank
Bridge Street
P.O. Box 335/336
Castries, Saint Lucia 

Bank of Saint Lucia Limited
Bridge Street
P. O. Box 1862
Castries, Saint Lucia
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LUCELEC Vital Statistics
F O R  2 0 1 9

3 66
Solar  (MW) Transmission Voltage (kV)

50
Frequency (Hz)

261 EC$ 312.4M
Number of Employees Annual Revenues

368.9M
Unit  Sales (kWh)

11 415
Distribution Voltage (kV) Customer Supply Voltage 

3 Phase

240 
Customer Supply Voltage 

Single Phase

68,346 88.4
No. of Customers Available Generation (MW)

62.5
Maximum Demand (MW)
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LUCELEC 2019
C O R P O R A T E  P E R F O R M A N C E 1

Indices Measure of Success Target Performance
Improve Financial Performance Profit After Tax/Net 

Income
$29.4M $31.34M

Improved Working 
Capital 

Current Ratio of 2.22 1.76

Increase customer value and 
stakeholder satisfaction

Fuel Efficiency 4.28 kWh/litre 4.27 kWh/litre

SAIDI (System Average 
Interruption Duration 
Index)

7.65 hours 7.1 hours

SAIFI (System Average 
Interruption Frequency 
Index)

7.07 6.41

Stakeholder (Customer) 
Satisfaction Score

Stakeholder satisfaction 
with various value items 
– 88.5%

87.46%

Cost Management - Efficient 
& Aligned Core & Supporting 
Processes

MWh Sold/FTE 1,290.12 1,294.52

Total Operating Cost/
kWh Sold

$0.291 $0.288

System Losses 6.35% 6.54% 2

Proactive Risk Management 
Process

All Injury/Illness 
Frequency Rate

0.35 0

Strategic Human Resources 
Management - Demonstrate 
Effective Leadership & 
Management

Employee Engagement 
Levels (Implementation)

Implement 90% of 
Employee Engagement 
Plan by End of Year

100%

Employee Engagement 
Levels
(Survey)

Achieve 70% on results 
of survey to assess 
Employee Engagement 
Levels

76.4%

1 Note the results here are for St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited (LUCELEC) only; not for the Group.
2 An adjustment relating to sales for the years 2015-2019 was made in 2019.  As a result, the System 
Losses reported for the year is impacted by that one-off adjustment. Without this adjustment the System 
Losses would have been 6.4%
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LUCELEC 2020
C O R P O R A T E  T A R G E T

Indices Measure of Success Target
Improve Financial Performance Profit After Tax/Net Income $32M

Improved Working Capital Current Ratio of 2

Increase customer value and 
stakeholder satisfaction

Fuel Efficiency 4.28 kWh/litre

SAIDI (System Average 
Interruption Duration Index)

7.53 hours

SAIFI (System Average 
Interruption Frequency Index) 

6.8

Stakeholder (Customer) 
Satisfaction Score

87%

Cost Management - Efficient 
& Aligned Core & Supporting 
Processes

MWh Sold/FTE 1,249.26

Total Operating Cost/kWh Sold $0.286

System Losses 6.5%

Proactive Risk Management 
Process

All Injury/Illness Frequency Rate 0.34

Strategic Human Resources 
Management - Demonstrate 
Effective Leadership & 
Management

Employee Engagement Levels 
(Implementation)

Implement 95% of Employee 
Engagement Plan by End of Year

Employee Engagement 
Levels(Survey)

Achieve 78% on results of survey 
to assess Employee Engagement 
Levels
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5 Year Operational and Financial
P E R F O R M A N C E  A T  A  G L A N C E

Fuel Efficiency
(kWhs/Litre)

System Losses
 (%)

Earnings and Dividends per Share 
(EC$)

Return on Equity 
(%)

4.28

7.87

$1.26

11.6 35

26

26

27

30

65

74

74

73

70

2015

2015

2015

2015

2017

2017

2017

2017

2016

2016

2016

2016

2018

2018

2018

2018

2019

2019

2019

2019

4.32

7.52

$0.75

$1.48

$0.78

$1.51

$1.01

$1.53

$0.95

$1.86

$1.02

12.7

4.29

6.86 12.3

4.28

6.34 12.0

4.27

6.54 12.7

EPS DPS

Dividends/Profit after Tax  
(EC$Millions)

$17.22015

2017

2016

2018

2019

$28.9

$17.9

$34.0

$23.1

$34.7

$21.8

$35.0

$23.4

$38.0

Dividends          Profit After Tax

SAIDI 
(Hrs)

11.032015

2017

2016

2018

2019

7.27

8.91

8.04

7.10

   Lower is better

   Lower is better
Debt/Equity Ratios
(%)

2015

2017

2016

2018

2019

Debt        Equity
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2019 Financial
H I G H L I G H T S

Where the LUCELEC Dollar came from

How the LUCELEC Dollar was spent

Sale of Electricity
Borrowings

Consumer Contributions and Deposits
Investment Income

Sundry Income

%

Sale of Electricity 92.7

Borrowings 6.3

Consumer contributions and deposits 0.4

Investment income 0.2

Sundry income 0.4

100.0

Fuel and Lubricants
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Debts Servicing
Dividends

Payments to Government
Operations

Payroll Costs

%

Fuel and lubricants 48.2

Purchase of fixed assets 12.1

Debt servicing 5.5

Dividends 7.6

Payments to Government 4.0

Operations 10.7

Payroll costs 11.9

100.0
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Chairman’s
M E S S A G E

When news of the first cluster of cases of the new coronavirus, COVID-19, in 
Wuhan, China, broke in December of 2019, who would have thought then, that the 
world as we knew it would change dramatically in the months following. That’s the 
context for the Company’s performance for 2019 and the outlook for 2020.
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Industry Overview - International
In the electric utility industry, the major imperatives 
for 2019 continued to be resilience, improving 
disaster response, updating aging infrastructure, 
developing smarter grids, and integrating 
renewable and distributed energy resources 
into the grid.  Prices for renewable energy and 
battery storage technologies continued to decline 
providing greater impetus for clean energy, 
distributed generation and electric vehicles (EVs).  

Globally crude oil prices for 2019 were generally 
lower than 2018, averaging about US$57 per barrel 
(WTI – West Texas Intermediate), US$7 per barrel 
lower.  This was driven by the usual combination 
of geopolitics, global economic performance, 
and increased US oil production despite lower 
production from other major suppliers.

Projections for 2020 were for strong growth in 
the global economy which was expected to drive 
demand for oil.  But COVID-19 changed all that. 
The global economy all but ground to a halt since 
the World Health Organisation officially declared 
COVID-19 a pandemic in March 2020, and the 
future has hardly ever been characterised by 
greater uncertainty. 

Industry Overview – Local
The major issues facing the electricity sector in St. 
Lucia in 2019 were no different to what obtained 
internationally.  The slightly lower price of oil was 
reflected in a marginal decline in electricity rates. 
The Company continued the systematic 
improvements to its infrastructure and equipment 
that generate, monitor and manage the delivery 
of electricity, in keeping with its strategy to use 
appropriate technology to enhance operational 
efficiency and resilience and diversify energy 
sources.    

Challenges
Despite the adoption of the National Energy 
Transition Strategy (NETS) for Saint Lucia which 

maps out how the energy sector should be 
developed and the critical role LUCELEC plays 
in that strategy, the legislative and regulatory 
framework continues to lag behind the 
advancements in technology and the smart grid 
foundation that LUCELEC is developing.  

The Company’s building infrastructure is no 
longer aging gracefully.  Building improvements 
had to be made at several locations resulting in 
multiple closures of some of the Customer Service 
locations and relocation of staff. It is a credit to the 
staff that they soldiered on despite the discomfort 
and achieved the results they did.

Company Performance
The Company’s overall performance for 2019 is 
commendable given the circumstances. Electricity 
sales grew by 2.0%.  The Group’s Profit after Tax 
increased by 8.6% to EC$38M, and Earnings Per 
Share for the year was EC$1.66, an increase of 
8.5% over the prior year. The Group achieved a 
Return on Equity of 12.7% (2018 – 12%). 

LUCELEC achieved target or better on 8 of its 12 
measures of success and achieved the threshold 
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performance for 2 and below threshold for 2.   
Significantly, the Company achieved stretch 
performance for employee engagement, a 
testament to the efforts aimed at engaging the 
LUCELEC Team for greater harmony and to more 
effectively channel our collective energies to 
achieving our goals.  

Outlook for 2020
Initially, for 2020, the Company was projecting 
marginal sales growth and continuing work on 
modernizing the grid, preparing to install its 
first utility grade storage battery system and 
commencing work on a 10-megawatt solar PV 
system in the south east of the island.  The 
economic impact of COVID-19 has forced major 
adjustments to this outlook and these plans.  The 
Company’s focus has been redirected to mainly 
what is necessary to maintain safe, reliable 
operations until year end.

Nonetheless, some key considerations remain.  
The current strategic business plan, originally 
scheduled for completion in 2020, has been 
extended into 2021.  Work on a new strategic plan 

looking towards 2035 will begin and the Company 
has undertaken major engagements with its 
various stakeholders in preparation for this.  There 
is a need for clarity on the policy and regulatory 
framework coming out of agreement by the major 
stakeholders on what the energy future for St. 
Lucia looks like, LUCELEC’s role in it, and working 
steadfastly towards that. But if there is one thing 
that COVID-19 has shown, it is that adaptability will 
be key.  Whatever plan we develop for the future we 
are going to have to ensure that we increase our 
capacity to adapt and to do so with great agility.   

Conclusion
I take the opportunity to express my appreciation 
for the support of the other Directors on the 
Board of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited, the 
Directors of the subsidiaries (LUCELEC Cap Ins Inc., 
and Energyze Holdings Inc.), and the management 
and staff of LUCELEC for the effort they continue 
to put in every year to ensure we have good results 
to report on.   

At the time of writing this, the future remains very 
uncertain, but what we do know is that COVID-19 
has given new meaning to the phrase, “it will not 
be business as usual”. Nonetheless, we will engage 
this “new normal” with the commitment, resilience, 
and reliability our stakeholders have come to 
expect of us, as we continue to deliver our promise 
to be the energy that powers our nation’s success.

John Joseph
Chairman
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7.1

 76.4%

78

125

6.5%6.41

4.27

2,676

1.09

1,294.52

  87.46%

0

Solar 
(MW)

SAIDI 
(Hours)

Employee Engagement 
Index

Miles of Transmission 
(66 kV) Lines

Distributed Generation 
(# of systems)

System 
Losses

SAIFI
(Hours)

Fuel Efficiency
(kWh/litre) 

Miles of Distribution 
(11kV) Lines

Distributed 
Generation (MW)

MWh Sold/
FTE

Customer Satisfaction 
Index

All Injury Frequency 
Rate (AIFR)

LUCELEC Results
F O R  2 0 1 9

62.5
Maximum Demand 

(MW)

EC$0.288
Total Operating Cost/

kWh Sold
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John Joseph was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited in January 2016 representing minority shareholders. Mr 
Joseph is a consultant and regional associate consultant with Water and 
Waste Water Solutions of Canada (WWWS) specializing in the utilities sector. 
He has an MBA (Corporate Finance) from Fairleigh Dickinson University and a 

BSc degree in Economics (Upper Second-Class Honours) from the University of the West Indies as well 
as over thirty (30) years’ experience in the utilities sector. Mr Joseph is the Chairman of the Board’s 
Strategic Planning and Investments Committee and a member of the Human Resources Committee. 

Trevor Louisy was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited on January 1, 2004 and is the Managing Director of St. 
Lucia Electricity Services Limited.  He holds a BSc in Electrical Engineering 
and is a member of the Board’s Human Resource and Strategic Planning and 
Investments Committees.

Board of
D I R E C T O R S

John Joseph

Trevor M. Louisy

Acc. Dir. - Chairman

Acc. Dir. – Managing Director

Charles Serieux was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited on December 2, 2016 representing minority shareholders. 
Mr Serieux is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants 
(FCCA) and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of the Eastern 
Caribbean (ICAEC). He has been the Managing Director of Ultramart Inc. 

chain of supermarkets since 2003. Mr Serieux is a member of the Board’s Governance and Audit 
Committees, and the Board representative on the LUCELEC Staff (Grade II) Pension Scheme.

Charles Serieux Acc. Dir. 
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Nicholas John was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited on August 23, 2016 by the Government of Saint Lucia 
(GOSL). Mr John is an Attorney at Law by profession with almost forty (40) 
years’ experience, holding an LLB (Hons.) degree from the London School 
of Economics. He is the principal with the law firm of Nicholas John & Co., 

and the Managing Director of the Hewanorra Fiduciary Services Group. Mr John is a member of the 
Board’s Governance and Strategic Planning & Investments Committees.  

Nicholas John 

Leslie Prospere was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited on September 9, 2016 by the Castries Constituencies Council 
(CCC). Mr Prospere is an Attorney at Law by profession with almost sixteen (16) 
years’ experience, holding an LLB (Hons.) degree from the University of London. 
He is a Partner with the law firm of Gordon & Gordon Co., and is a member of the 

Board’s Governance and Audit Committees.

Leslie Prospere 

Acc. Dir. 

Matthew Mathurin was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited by the National Insurance Corporation (NIC) on 
August 29, 2007.  Mr Mathurin is the Director/Chief Executive Officer of the NIC.  

He is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and holds an MBA (with Distinction) 
with Specialism in Finance from the Edinburgh Business School of Heriott Watt University.  Mr Mathurin 
was a member of the Board’s Strategic Planning and Investment and Human Resources Committees.

Matthew Lincoln Mathurin

(demitted office on August 28, 2019 in accordance with the Amended and 
Restated By Law No. 1 having served 12 consecutive years on the Board)

Dr Frederick Isaac was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited by the National Insurance Corporation (NIC) on 
November 15, 2019.  Dr Isaac is a multi-disciplinary consulting engineer.  
He has been the Chairman of Smart Technologies since 2019 and Energy 
& Advance Control Technologies since 2007.  Dr Isaac is a member of the 

Board’s Strategic Planning and Investment and Audit Committees.

Dr Frederick Isaac (appointed November 15, 2019)
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Sharon Christopher was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited by Emera (St. Lucia) Limited on May 13, 2016. 
Ms Christopher is the Chief Executive Officer of Sharon Christopher and 
Associates. She is an Attorney at Law, a leadership development coach and 
a motivational speaker. She holds an LLB (Upper Second-Class Honours), a 

Legal Education Certificate (LEC), and an LLM in Corporate Law.  Ms Christopher is the Chairman of 
the Board’s Human Resource and Governance Committees.

Frank Myers was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services by the National Insurance Corporation (NIC) with effect from January 
1, 2018. He is the Deputy Chairman of the NIC and Chairman of the NIC’s 
Group Audit Committee.  Mr Myers is a Chartered Accountant (FCCA) by 
profession and recently retired from public practice after a career spanning 

some 30 years, most of which were spent with a global accounting firm.  He now runs his own 
consulting firm, Frank Myers Consulting.  He holds a BSc (Hons) in Mathematics and Statistics from 
Edinburgh University in Scotland, and is a former President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of the Caribbean.  Mr Myers has also served as President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of the Eastern Caribbean. Mr Myers is a Member of the Board’s Audit and Governance Committees.

Sharon Christopher 

Frank V. Myers Acc. Dir. 

Acc. Dir. 

Roger Blackman was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited on March 19, 2016 by Emera (St. Lucia) Limited.  
Mr Blackman is a Mechanical Engineer by profession and holds a BSc in 
Engineering degree from the University of the West Indies, St. Augustine 
Campus and an MBA from Durham University, UK. He is also the Managing 

Director of Barbados Light & Power Company Limited. Mr Blackman is a member of the Board’s 
Strategic Planning and Investments and Audit Committees.

Roger Blackman Acc. Dir. 
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(appointed May 12, 2019)

Acc. Dir. 

Carole Eleuthere-Jn Marie was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited on January 26, 2015 by First Citizens Bank Limited.  
She holds a BSc (Hons.) degree in Accounting from the University of the West 
Indies, is a Chartered Accountant (FCCA) by profession and from 1992, a member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Saint Lucia (now ICAEC).  Mrs Jn. 

Marie is currently the Chief Executive Officer of First Citizens Bank (Barbados) Limited. Mrs Jn. Marie is the 
Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee and a member of the Human Resources Committee.

Carole Eleuthere-Jn Marie 

Lindi Ballah-Tull was appointed to the Board of St. Lucia Electricity Services 
Limited on May 12, 2019 by First Citizens Bank Limited.  Ms Ballah-Tull is 
currently the Group Corporate Secretary/Head - Legal, Compliance and 
Governance of the First Citizens Group and has over 25 years’ experience in the 
field of Corporate Law and Banking.  She holds a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) Degree 

(Honours) from the University of the West Indies, Cave Hill, Barbados and a Legal Education Certificate 
(LEC) from the Hugh Wooding Law School, St Augustine, Trinidad and Tobago. Ms Ballah-Tull is a Member 
of the Human Resources and Governance Committees of the Board.

Karen Darbasie was appointed to the Board of Directors of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited on May 13, 2016 by First Citizens Bank Limited. Ms Darbasie 
is the Group Chief Executive Officer at First Citizens Bank. She holds a BSc 

(Hons.) degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of the West Indies, an MSc with distinction 
in Telecommunications and Information Systems from University of Essex, England and an MBA with 
distinction from University of Warwick, England. Ms Darbasie was a member of the Board’s Strategic 
Planning and Investments and Governance Committees.

Lindi Ballah-Tull 

Karen Darbasie 

(resigned May 12, 2019, not having sought reappointment at the end of her three-year term)
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Directors’
R E P O R T

Principal Activities
The Company’s principal activities consist of 
the generation, transmission and distribution of 
electricity.  There were no significant changes to the 
nature of the Company’s activities during the year.

Directors
The Directors of the Company since the 54th 
Annual Shareholders Meeting were:

Non-Executive Directors:
•	 Mr John Joseph
•	 Mr Matthew Lincoln Mathurin (demitted office on 

August 28, 2019 in accordance with the Amended and 
Restated By Law No. 1 having served 12 consecutive years 
on the Board)

•	 Dr Frederick Isaac (appointed November 15, 2019)

•	 Mr Frank Myers 
•	 Ms Sharon Christopher
•	 Mr Roger Blackman
•	 Mr Leslie Prospere
•	 Mr Nicholas John
•	 Mr Charles Serieux 
•	 Ms Karen Darbasie (resigned May 12, 2019, not having 

sought reappointment at the end of her three-year term)

•	 Ms Lindi Ballah-Tull (appointed May 12, 2019)

•	 Mrs Carole Eleuthere-Jn Marie 

Executive Director:
•	 Mr Trevor Louisy

Financial Results
The Company sold 368.9 million kWh of electricity, 
a 2% increase over the previous year attributable 
to increased sales to the Industrial, Commercial, 
Domestic and Hotel sectors but partially offset 

by a decline in the Street Lights sector.  Total 
revenues were EC$312.4 million, a 0.5% increase 
over the previous year due to the increase in unit 
sales although there was a slight decline in tariffs.

Net profit for the year for the Group was EC$38 
million an increase of 8.6% over the previous year.  
The Group achieved Earnings per Share of EC$1.66, 
an increase of 8.5% over 2018 (EC$1.53).

Assets acquired during the year amounted to 
EC$40.3 million comprising mainly of upgrades to 
the transmission and distribution network, station 
improvements, engine overhauls and information 
technology system upgrades.

Dividends
The Board of Directors declared a total dividend 
of EC$1.02 per ordinary share for 2018.  The 
Company paid an interim dividend in December 
2019 of EC$0.45 per ordinary share.  

In 2020, the Board of Directors will make a 
recommendation to the shareholders on the total 
dividend for the 2019 financial year.  

State of Affairs
In the opinion of the Directors there were no 
significant changes in the state of affairs of the 
Company during the financial year.

Activities and Other Information
On May 9 2019, the Board conducted its biennial 
formal Board Evaluation. The Evaluation was 
conducted by an external resource.  The result of 

The  Directors present their report for the year ended December 31, 2019.
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the Evaluation disclosed that the Board remained 
committed to ensuring that the highest levels 
of corporate governance was achieved and 
maintained.

On August 8, 2019, Directors attended the 
annual Strategic Planning Session with Executive 
Management to discuss the strategic positioning 
of the Company to meet future financial, technical 
and regulatory challenges.  At that session the 
Board noted that the existing Strategic Business 
Plan would end on December 31, 2020 and 
commenced planning for the 2021 and beyond 
strategic business plan.

Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date
The COVID-19 pandemic and the ripple effect 
on the global and local economies are expected 
to result in some operational challenges for the 
Company, which may put the achievement of its 
corporate targets for 2020 at risk. Apart from this 
and other matters discussed elsewhere in the 
Annual Report, the Directors are not aware of any 
other matters or circumstances which have arisen 

since December 31, 2019 that have significant 
effect or may significantly affect the operations of 
the entity in subsequent financial years, the results 
of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
entity in future years.

By order of the Board of Directors

Gillian S. French
Company Secretary
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Management
T E A M

Gary Eugene

Sharon Narcisse Ian Peter

Gilroy Pultie

Goodwin d’Auvergne

Jevon Nathaniel

Victor Emmanuel

Francis Daniel 

Transmission & Distribution 

Mgr. (Ag)

Senior Human Resource Mgr.

Manager Strategy  Dev. 

and Implementation

Business Process Support Mgr. 

(on secondment to NEVLEC)

Chief Financial OfficerChief Engineer 

Generation Engineer

Business Development Mgr.

Trevor M. Louisy

Managing Director

BSc (Electrical Engineering),
Acc. Dir.

MEng (Electronics 
Engineering), Registered 
Professional Engineer

MSc Management (Human 
Resource Management), 
PGDip (Human Resource 
Management), BA (Business 
Administration), AS (Computer 
Information Systems)

BSc (Management Studies), 
FCCA

MBA (Finance), BSc 
(Electrical & Computer 
Engineering) 

MBA (Finance), BSc 
(Electrical Engineering) 

MSc (Computer Science), 
BSc (Electrical Engineering) 

MSc (Information Systems 
Engineering), BEng 
(Electrical Engineering) 

MPM (Project Management), 
BSc (Electrical Engineering) 
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Maxine Leon

Gillian FrenchRoger Joseph

Cornelius Edmund 

Jennifa Flood-George

Callixta BranfordBridget Ziva Phillips 

System Control Engineer (Ag)

General Counsel/
Company Secretary

Finance and Accounts Mgr. Planning Manager (Ag)

Corporate Communications 
Mgr.

Customer Service Mgr.

Internal Audit Mgr.

BSc Electrical & Computer 
Engineering

LLB (Hons) LEC MRP 
(Telecommunications), Acc. 
Dir., ACIS

MA (International
Communication &
Development), Dip. Mass
Communication

MSc (Electrical Engineering 
- Systems and Networks); 
Fellow of the Association 
of Professional Engineers 
of Saint Lucia, Registered 
Professional Engineer, Saint 
Lucia

BSc (Management Studies/
Psychology)

CPA, CGABSc (Economics & 
Accounting), FCCA, Acc. Dir.

Wynn Alexander

Information Systems Mgr.

M. Eng. Internetworking, BSc 
(Computer Science), Dip. 
Financial Management, Dip. 
Business Administration, 
PMP, CISM
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Operations
R E V I E W

2019 represented the penultimate year in the life 
of the existing 2020 strategic business plan (SBP). 
So, in addition to the usual annual review of the 
pillars underlining the existing business strategy, 
St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited also began 
work on developing its business strategy for the 
next planning horizon.

In operationalizing the 2020 SBP, the focus 
remained on operational excellence, with 
emphasis on Human Resources Development, 
Cost Optimization and Management, Customer 
Care, System Enhancement, and Enterprise Risk 
Management.

Corporate Performance
At the end of December 2019, the company had 
met or exceeded eight (8) of the twelve (12) 
measures of success, and achieved threshold 
performance or lower for the remaining four (4). 
The overall corporate performance score for 2019 
was 113.3, realizing the second successive year of 
performing above target. 

Targets were exceeded for Profit After Tax, System 
Average Interruption Frequency Index (SAIFI – a 
measure of Reliability), All Injury Frequency 
Rate (Safety), Total Cost/kWh Sold (Cost 
Management) and Employee Engagement for both 
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implementation and results - a testament to the 
Company’s efforts at improving engagement in the 
organization.

The Company met targets for System Average 
Interruption Duration Index (SAIDI – another 
Reliability measure) and MWh Sold/Full Time 
Employee (Productivity), and achieved just 
above threshold performance for Stakeholder 
Satisfaction and Fuel Efficiency. Performance for 
Working Capital Ratio and System Losses (Cost 
Management) were below threshold.

Strategy Management
In addition to streamlining its performance 
monitoring and strategy performance reporting 
systems, in 2019 St. Lucia Electricity Services 
Limited started work on developing a long-range 
vision plan for the organization, spanning the period 
2021 to 2035. Phase I of the exercise entailed 
a series of engagements with key stakeholder 
groups to understand their expectations of 
LUCELEC for the next 15 years. The engagements 
included policy makers and regulators, the 
business community, education and youth 
institutions, alternative energy service providers 
and users, property developers and contractors, 
and residential customers. The output of this 
exercise will guide the development of the next 
strategic business plan during 2020. 

Update on Strategic Initiatives 
The Company’s Strategic Business Plan looking 
towards 2020 identifies seven key strategic 
themes as the highest priorities for focused action 
by the Company. These are: System Improvement 
and Enhancements (includes renewable energy), 
Developing a Culture of Customer Care, Corporate 
Diversification, Implementation of the Human 
Resource Strategic Plan, Cost Optimisation and 
Management, Development of an Enterprise-wide 
Risk Management System (includes regulatory 
reform), and Environmental Stewardship. The 
Company’s efforts in these areas are led by various 

cross functional teams who engage additional 
expertise as required.  

For 2019, the emphasis was on four of these 
themes and the updates on the initiatives 
associated with those are summarised below.  

System Improvements and Enhancements 
(including renewable energy)
In 2019 our efforts on System Enhancement 
focused on upgrading project plans for the 
introduction of utility-scale battery storage 
systems, finalising the designs for harnessing 
waste heat from the generation process for 
cooling, and setting the groundwork for the 
emergence of a Smart Grid. 

During the year LUCELEC completed the 
construction of a backbone fibre optic network 
on its distribution network poles.  This fibre 
network will provide significant improvement in 
information management and data acquisition 
in the Company’s operations.  It will allow for real 
time interactions with the increasing number of 
distributed energy resources on the grid.

The Company installed three more Electric Vehicle 
(EV) Charging Stations, covering Soufriere, Vieux 
Fort and Dennery.   This EV charging station thrust 
is seen as an important step to enhancing our 
prospects in future areas of energy use.

Customer Care 
In 2019, the Company continued working to 
improve its relationship with customers, to 
enhance customer experience, and to achieve 
greater customer satisfaction levels across 
all customer segments.  As a key pre-cursor to 
these achievements the Company engaged 
Customer Care team members through team 
building activities, work collaboration, regular team 
meetings and training.
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During the first quarter of 2019 the Company 
completed a major customer care training and 
development programme for frontline staff which 
was initiated in 2018 to enhance skills in delivering 
an excellent customer experience. This initiative was 
driven by the demands of customers to feel cared for, 
respected, valued and listened to.  An average Staff 
Rating of 89% in the 2019 Customer Satisfaction 
surveys confirmed that frontline staff exhibited the 
desired caring attitudes and behaviours in their daily 
interactions with customers.

The Company also increased its engagement with 
business customers through planned face to face 
meetings with large commercial, industrial and 
hotel customers.  These encounters provided a 
forum for open dialogue and allowed for a deeper 
understanding of the current and future needs and 
expectations of all parties.  

Progress with the implementation of the Call 
Management System (CMS) was delayed in 2019 
due to technical resource constraints.  Whereas 
the RFP for implementation of the CMS was 
finalised by July 2019, publication was deferred to 
2020 pending the availability of key IT resources. 
Once fully implemented, the CMS will improve 
the Company’s customer engagement capacity, 
enhance call handling performance, and deliver a 
better customer experience.  

LUCELEC is forever mindful of the important role of 
technology in the delivery of service to customers 
and thus, during the year there were renewed 
customer engagement efforts via our electronic 
platforms.  The use of SMS messaging and social 
media to communicate with customers on new bill 
information, payment due dates, planned outages 
and pending disconnections for example, equipped 
customers with information to make sensible 
and timely decisions to safeguard their individual 
interests.  Through the MyAccount platform, the 
Company provided customers with the means to 
have 24-hour access to their electronic bills for the 

past 12 months, analyse consumption patterns 
for their business or personal accounts, make bill 
payments via third party banking partners, as well 
as access other online services.  

Enterprise Risk Management 
Enterprise Risk management continued to be 
a priority for the Company. The Board has a risk 
identification and management framework which 
it uses to regularly identify and evaluate the 
Company’s risk profile and ensure appropriate 
risk mitigation measures are put in place. The 
Company’s overriding objective is to integrate risk 
management practices in all its operational and 
strategic decisions.

Human Resources (HR) Strategic Plan 
A core function of the HR Department is to ensure 
that all employees have the right skills for their 
jobs, and that the work environment supports 
the full engagement of all employees. To this end, 
LUCELEC’s 2019 Employee Engagement Plan 
focused on improving collaborative relationships 
between managers and their teams and between 
peers at the departmental level through learning 
and fun activities. As anticipated, these initiatives 
contributed to an improved Employee Morale and 
Satisfaction Index (EMSI) Rating of 76.4% (up from 
68.2% in 2018). The Company intends to continue 
to pursue these initiatives to achieve even greater 

Staff Awards Ceremony
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employee engagement levels.  This, we expect to 
positively impact employee motivation and morale, 
productivity and overall Company growth.

The Company’s Leadership Development 
Programme (LDP) focuses on building capacity 
in key areas of people management, including 
emotional intelligence, communication, coaching 
and team building.  Five (5) senior managers 
participated in various learning initiatives 
throughout 2019 and in 2020 the programme 
will be extended to middle managers as we seek 
to develop a pool of effective leaders to take on 
higher levels of responsibility.

In 2019, the Company developed and implemented 
a Competency Framework to provide employees 
a clear picture of the behaviours required for 
achievement of the Company’s business strategy, 
success in their current and future roles, and for 
career planning. The framework includes a 360 
Degree evaluation to help employees understand 
the extent to which their work behaviours are 

aligned to the Company’s values and the areas of 
performance that need to be strengthened. The 
first phase assessed senior managers.  The next 
phase will include all other staff.

Operational Performance
The performance of the Technical Division 
(Operations) as measured by achievement of 
Corporate targets, validated the premise that 
improved staff engagement levels translates into 
better performance in what was an otherwise 
challenging year. System reliability performance as 
measured by SAIDI and SAIFI was better than target 
- SAIDI of 7.10 hours vs a target of 7.65 hours, and 
SAIFI of 6.42 vs a target of 7.07 (lower SAIDI and 
SAIFI are better). The fuel efficiency result of 4.27 
kWh/litre was at threshold level. 

For the second time in the past 24 years, no work-
related accidents occurred during a calendar year 
resulting in an AIFR (All Injury Frequency Rate) of 0, 
which equated to stretch performance. 
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System Losses performance of 6.54% was 
impacted by a one-off  adjustment relating to sales 
for the years 2015-2019  which was made in 2019.  
Without this adjustment the System Losses would 
have been at threshold performance of 6.4%.

It should be noted that had T&D System loading not 
exceeded the forecast by over 1%, and the one-off 
adjustment not been made, the target for losses 
may have been achieved. 

The island wide shutdown of the electricity system 
on September 4, due to a major fault at the Cul De 
Sac substation, belied the tremendous effort of 
the Technical Division in ensuring reliability targets 
were achieved.

Generation Department
LUCELEC’s generating plant consists of 10 diesel 
Engines at the Cul de Sac Power Station with a 
combined capacity of 86.2 MW and two diesel 
engines at Belle Plaine Power Station with a total 
capacity of 2.2 MW.  During 2019 the department 
produced its highest ever energy output of 407.48 
gigawatt hours (GWh) with a fuel efficiency 
of 4.27 kWh/litre of fuel.  The computerized 
Distributed Control System (DCS) enabled efficient 

monitoring of the engines. Completing the planned 
maintenance on the engines contributed to 
reduced engine downtime and minimal forced 
outages resulting in a SAIDI (Gen) of 0.75 hours.  

During 2019 the department planned three 
Wartsila engine overhauls (G9, G5 and G6).  
Overhauls are major maintenance activities done 
after 20,000 hours of operation and involve the 
replacement of critical engine parts.  At year-end, 
two of the overhauls were completed and one was 
approximately 25% complete. The discovery of 
an abnormality on G4 which had the potential to 
cause a failure required immediate attention and 
impeded the planned overhaul programme. The 
department also installed and commissioned new 
turbochargers yielding higher fuel efficiency on 
G5 and G6, as the old turbochargers had reached 
the end of their useful lives. The results of these 
upgrades will be more apparent in 2020. Planned 
maintenance activities continued on other engines 
based on their running hours resulting in overall 
plant availability of 85.2% for 2019.  

The Garage completed its scheduled maintenance 
on the Company’s fleet of vehicles resulting in high 
rates of fleet vehicle availability. The Laboratory also 
provided valuable assistance to the department 
by ensuring that water, oil and fuel test results 
were available in a timely manner to ensure that all 
generating plant operations proceeded smoothly. 

System Control Department
2019 proved to be a particularly challenging year 
with transmission network faults at the Cul de 
Sac Substation and along the Castries to Reduit 
66kV transmission line threatening to compromise 
the reliability of supply offered to customers, 
particularly in the north of the island. Despite 
these challenges, the System Control Department 
completed nearly all of the scheduled solid-state 
protection relay upgrades for the Cul de Sac 
Substation, and improved the network of auto-
reclosers to further enhance system reliability. 
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Transmission & Distribution Department
In 2019, the Transmission and Distribution 
Department performed favourably despite key 
operational challenges due to a major cable fault at 
the Cul de Sac Substation and significant damage 
to an underground 66KV cable on the Castries to 
Reduit 66kV line. Both these faults compromised 
the redundancy built into the transmission and 
distribution network, given the lengthy repair 
process.

The Department completed 92.5% of the 
preventative maintenance programme to ensure 
reliability was not unduly compromised, and 
completed the deployment of AMI meters on 
the distribution system as well.  There are now 
68,400 AMI meters present on the system. The 
department also replaced the majority of the 
older generation AMI meters. The balance will be 
replaced in 2020. 

Facilities & Construction Management Section
By all measures, 2019 was a trying year for the 
Facilities and Construction Management Section 
(F&CMS) formerly known as the Building Services 
Section. The section continued to grapple with air 
quality related issues at various locations while 

endeavouring to maintain all of LUCELEC’s facilities 
including administrative offices, generating 
facilities, substations and the La Tourney Solar 
Farm in good condition.

Industrial Relations 
The Company continues to deal with staff 
grievances and other matters that are raised from 
time to time with a view to maintaining healthy 
employee relations. In 2019, the Company began 
finalizing its proposals to the National Workers 
Union (NWU) representing employees in Grades 4 
to 9, to commence negotiations for the triennium 
March 23, 2018 to March 22, 2021.

On August 23, 2019, the Labour Tribunal ruled 
on the long outstanding Grade Structure for 
employees in Grades 1 to 3, represented by the 
Civil Service Association (CSA). The decision 
paved the way for the Company and the CSA 
to sign the Collective Agreement for the 2011 
to 2013 Triennium in November 2019 and the 
Company agreed to make all retroactive payments 
to the employees in that group by March 31, 
2020.  In 2020 the parties will seek to conclude 
negotiations for the trienniums January 1, 2014 
to December 31, 2016 and January 1, 2017 to 
December 31, 2019.

Street light maintenance
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Financial Operations
S U M M A R Y

EC$ 0.45 EC$ 1.66
Interim Dividend per Share 

declared for 2019
Earnings per Share (EPS)

EC$ 40.3M 
Capital Expenditure

EC$ 312.4M 12.7%

Total Revenues Return on Equity  (ROE)

EC$ 169.1M
Retained Earnings

27:73 CariBBB
(Adequate)

Debt to Equity Ratio Credit Rating (CariCRIS)

38
DSO (days)

12.81% EC$ 1.02
LUCELEC Return on Contributed 

Capital (Rate of Return)
Total Dividend per Share 

declared for 2018

EC$ 38.0M 
Profit after Tax 

(PAT)
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Financial Operations
The following is an analysis of the consolidated 
results of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited (the 
Company) and its subsidiaries - Energyze Holdings 
Inc. and LUCELEC Cap-Ins. Inc.

Sales & Revenues
Electricity sales grew by 2.0% in 2019 compared 
to a 0.5% increase in 2018.  Sales increased in the 
Industrial (4.8%), Commercial (3.0%), Domestic 
(2.6%) and Hotel (0.1%) sectors, while there was a 
decrease in the Street Light sector (5.1%).  

Total revenue of EC$312.4M exceeded 2018’s 
EC$310.7M by EC$1.7M (0.5%) primarily due 
to the increase in unit sales, dampened by the 
slight decline in the tariff.  The overall average 
tariff decreased by 1.2% from EC$0.85 in 2018 
to EC$0.84 in 2019, driven by lower fuel prices 
compared to the previous year. 

The average fuel price per gallon for the year was 
EC$7.55, a decrease of 2.3% compared to the 
average fuel price of EC$7.73 per gallon in 2018. 

Generation costs of EC$28.8M (excluding fuel 
costs) were higher than the previous year’s 
costs of EC$25.8M by EC$3.0M (11.6%) mainly 
as a result of increases in payroll of EC$1.5M, 
depreciation of EC$0.8M, maintenance on the 
generation engines of EC$0.2M, solar farm 
maintenance of EC$0.3M and building maintenance 
of EC$0.2M.  

Transmission and distribution costs of EC$40.7M 
decreased by EC$1.2M (2.9%) compared to 
the prior year’s EC$41.9M due to decreases in 
depreciation of EC$2.7M, disaster restoration 
of EC$1.0M and T&D maintenance of EC$0.4M, 
despite increases in payroll of EC$2.6M and 
software maintenance of EC$0.3M.

Administrative expenditure of EC$34.0M increased 
by EC$1.0M (3.0%) from prior year of EC$33.0M. 

This was primarily due to increases in depreciation 
and amortisation of EC$0.5M, insurance of 
EC$0.4M, bad debts provision of EC$0.7M and 
public relations and sponsorships of EC$0.3M.  
These increases were offset by reductions in 
employee costs of EC$0.4M and motor vehicle 
expenses of EC$0.5M.

Finance costs increased by EC$0.3M (5.8%) 
from EC$5.2M in 2018 to EC$5.5M in 2019 due 
to the increase in the loan balance and a change 
in the approach to accounting for leases.   With 
the implementation of a new standard, IFRS 16, 
the Company now recognises lease assets, lease 
liabilities, depreciation of these assets and finance 
costs in its financial statements.  The weighted 
average interest rate in 2019 was 4.6% compared 
to 4.8% in 2018. 

Profit
The Group achieved a Profit before Tax of 
EC$51.7M, which was higher than the previous 
year’s result of EC$47.6M by 8.6%.  

The Group’s Profit after Tax of EC$38.0M increased 
by 8.6% compared to the previous year’s 
achievement of EC$35.0M. 



ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

- 30 -

Earnings per share for the year for the Group was 
EC$1.66 (2018 – EC$1.53), an increase of 8.5% 
over the prior year. 

The Group achieved a Return on Equity of 12.7% 
(2018 – 12.0%). However, the Company achieved 
a Return on Contributed Capital (Rate of Return) of 
12.81% as compared to 14.93% in 2018. The Rate 
of Return achieved is within the allowable range 
of 10% to 14.25% as stipulated by the existing 
legislation. 

The Return on Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets for the Group based on historical 
costs was 10.4% (2018 – 9.7%) and Return on 
Total Assets was 7.2% (2018 – 7.1%).

Retained Earnings for the Group increased from 
EC$161.6M to EC$169.1M while the Debt to 
Equity ratio was 27:73 (2018 – 26:74).

Capital Expenditure
Total expenditure for the year amounted to 
EC$40.3M (2018 – EC$36.1M), which related 
primarily to upgrades to the Transmission and 
Distribution network, station improvements, engine 
overhauls and Information Technology system 
upgrades.

Working Capital Management
The Company recorded Days Sales Outstanding 
(DSO) of 38 days, an improvement over 44 days 
recorded in the prior year, as total trade receivables 
declined from EC$40.9M at the end of 2018 to 
EC$36.0M at the end of 2019. 

Capital Financing
The Company continued to operate under 
debt covenants stipulated in Security Sharing 
Agreements (SSA) with its lenders which, among 
other provisions, set the maximum level of debt 
that the Company is allowed to undertake.   

Credit Rating
 A credit rating exercise was conducted by 
CariCRIS, the Caribbean credit rating agency at the 
end of 2019. CariCRIS reaffirmed the Company’s 
credit rating of CariBBB (Adequate). 

Risk Management
The Company maintains a Risk Register which, on 
a continuous basis captures all identified risks to 
the Company and progress on mitigation measures. 
This register is reviewed by the Audit Committee 
of the Board of Directors at its regular meetings 
during the year.

Fuel Hedging
During the year, the Company utilised Fixed Price 
Swaps to hedge against fluctuations in the price 
of diesel fuel used for generating electricity.  On 
December 31, 2019, swap contracts existed for 
the hedging of 50% of the fuel to be purchased in 
the first half of 2020.

Shareholders’ Equity
The Company’s shares closed at EC$20 (2018 – 
EC$20) resulting in a price to earnings (P/E) ratio 
of 12.1 times (2018 – 13.1 times).  The Company 
has issued share capital of 22,920,000 ordinary 
shares.

Energyze Holdings Inc.
In 2017 St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited 
purchased 100% shares in Energyze Holdings Inc., 
a Company incorporated in January 2016.  There 
have been no material transactions undertaken by 
the Company since its incorporation.

LUCELEC Cap-Ins. Inc.
LUCELEC Cap-Ins. Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary 
of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited, was 
incorporated on December 29, 2014 as a vehicle 
for managing the self-insurance of the Company’s 
transmission and distribution assets.  At December 
31, 2019 LUCELEC Cap-Ins Inc. had net assets of 
EC$41.8M (2018 – EC$35.1M).  
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The fund’s investment portfolio comprised US 
Treasury bills and commercial paper and regional 
investment grade securities.  Money market and 
income funds held, experienced an increase in the 
market value giving rise to a significant increase in 
profit for this entity.

Outlook
At the time of preparing this report, the Company 
was already experiencing the ripple effect of the 
global pandemic associated with the novel corona 
virus, COVID-19.  The country’s largest contributor 
to GDP, the tourism industry, is expected to be hit 
the hardest, directly impacting the hotel sector and 
filtering to the commercial and other sectors. The 
future is uncertain as the major tourism markets 
- the United States, Canada and United Kingdom 
- continue to grapple with this disease.  Working 
capital management will be a key focus for the 
Company in the upcoming months.

Strategic Priorities for 2020 include: - 
1. Enterprise-Wide Risk Management;

2. Continued investment in System enhancement 
and resilience;

3. Continued review of business processes to 
determine the optimal structure and resources 
to ensure the survival of the Company in a 
changing environment; and

4. Improving operational efficiency and return 
on assets through better use of existing and 
future investments in technology.

Conclusion
The Group’s overall performance improved over 
the prior year. Its future performance is dependent 
on the successful execution of its strategy which 
is focused on maintaining an acceptable level of 
reliability, power quality, safety and customer care 
despite the anticipated economic fallout caused by 
the global pandemic.
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Corporate Social
R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y

Students in LUCELEC Scholarship Programme

6.84M EC$ 2.66M
Units Generated by 

Solar Farm (kWh)
Fuel Cost Saved

352,000
Reduction in Diesel Used 

(Imp. Gallons)

EC$ 0.99M 0
Sponsorship & Donations AIFR

883
Volunteer Hours
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LUCELEC’s engagement with the society and the 
environment in which we do business is critical to 
our ability to operate effectively. In ensuring we do 
so in a socially responsible way we are guided by 
the ISO 26000 Guidance on Social Responsibility. 
It addresses seven core subjects - organizational 
governance, respect for human rights, labour 
practices, care for the environment, consumer 
issues, fair operating practices, and community 
involvement and development. We consider these in 
the execution of our Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) policy.  

In that regard, we seek to contribute to every 
aspect of Saint Lucian life, such that through our 
operations, services and various philanthropic 
and sponsorship initiatives, we’re engaging 
communities and helping them thrive socially and 
economically by our support for business, sports, 
arts, culture, health care, charitable institutions, 
faith-based and non-profit organisations.

Some of our operating practices, consumer or 
customer care, respect for human rights and labour 
practices have been covered in previous sections 
of this Annual Report.  This section focuses on 
governance, environmental sustainability and 
corporate philanthropy executed under our Power 
of Caring brand.

Governance
2019 ended with the promised regulatory reform 
still incomplete and continuing uncertainty on 
when and how the state intends to complete this 
process.  Nonetheless, the Company continued 
its work on building a robust framework for 
governance, stability and success.  This included: -

1. Continued engagements with the National 
Utilities Regulatory Commission (NURC) 
and regular meetings with Government 
technocrats on sectoral issues which have 
national impact;

2. Our annual strategic planning session where 

the Board met with Management and approved 
the road map for the development of the new 
strategic business plan for 2021 and beyond.  
A significant portion of the road map includes 
actively engaging with external stakeholders.

3. The Board retaining Customer Impact and 
Learning and Growth as key corporate 
targets, both of which require external and 
internal customer engagements in order to be 
successful.

The Board and Management, by design and 
action, have recognised that for the Company to 
be sustainable and remain successful it cannot 
operate in isolation of its employees, external 
stakeholders, or the country.  The information 
obtained through these engagements continue to 
guide future plans for the Company.

In May 2019, the Company had one of two major 
engagements with shareholders - the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders, where shareholders 
had the opportunity to engage the Board and 
Management on Company operations. The second 
engagement was in November 2019, when the 
Company hosted its biennial shareholder forum.  
The Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange 
Limited (ECSE) conducted a very interactive 
educational session with minority shareholders 
which included information on the operations of 
the ECSE and the legal rights of shareholders.

Shareholder Training Session
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Environmental Responsibility
LUCELEC continues to take active steps to 
minimise the impact of its operations on the 
environment.  In 2019, we recorded our fifth 
consecutive year of zero oil spills at the diesel-
powered facility at Cul De Sac.

The 6.84 million kWh of electricity produced by the 
solar farm reduced fuel consumption by 352,000 
gallons for the year. At the end of 2019 there were 
125 distributed generation (roof top solar PV) 
systems connected to the LUCELEC grid which 
provided 1.09 MW of renewable energy capacity.

We continue to expand use of shielded conductors 
in wooded areas to minimise tree trimming and 
improve safety. As well, the introduction of 
drone technology in inspections of the 66kV 
transmission network has reduced interference 
with the natural habitats of wildlife, some of which 
are endemic and protected. 

The Company also harvests rain water for use at its 
Cul De Sac facility and recycles used oil so it can be 
repurposed by commercial entities.  Improvements 
in our transformer maintenance techniques are 
also more environmentally friendly. 

We also contribute to education and training in 
the management of the environment through 
support for initiatives like the Caribbean Student 
Environmental Alliance’s Rainforest to Reef Camp 
that teaches young people how to clean up and 
protect watersheds and coral reefs within their 
respective communities.

The Company also continued to undertake tree 
planting exercises in collaboration with the 
Forestry Department to reforest areas damaged 
by land slippage and to protect river banks, and 
we supported a pilot recycling project aimed at 
diverting plastics, cans and bottle waste from the 
landfill.

Corporate Philanthropy
As always, the Company assisted a myriad of 
organisations with the aim of increasing economic 
activity, improving education and educational 
facilities, and supporting the more vulnerable 
in the society. We begin with brief overviews of 
three major projects that capture LUCELEC’s 
commitment to work with a broad range of partners 
to make a big difference in the lives and fortunes of 
at-risk youth, communities and organisations.

Our Boys Matter
Our Boys Matter is designed to give at-risk 
male youth opportunities to change the course 
of their lives. Administered by the Saint Lucia 
Social Development Fund (SSDF), the programme 
provides psychological and social intervention 
in the areas of parenting, life skills training, 
mentorship, assessment of and intervention in  
the family dynamics, housing and educational 
assistance as needed.

It began in early 2018 as a pilot programme 
at the Boys Training Centre where wards were 
mentored and given enhancement training.  In 
August 2018, the pilot was extended to 100 
boys from seven secondary schools across the 
island. The participants were selected by school 

Tree planting in La Ressource, Dennery
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counsellors based on academic performance and 
socio-economic background.  It is expected that 
this intervention among the underperforming and 
impoverished boys will help change them into 
active survivors rather than passive victims. 
   
The programme continued into 2019 and seeks 
to replicate a community effort towards raising 
children through its multifaceted approach. 
Already, the programme is demonstrating 
some success in improving school attendance, 
performance, behaviour, and skills among boys 
enrolled in it.

LUCELEC has contributed a total of $100,000 
towards the programme. We may not turn around 
all the boys in the programme but we would have 
provided opportunities that they may not have had 
otherwise.

RISE St. Lucia Inc.’s Safe Spaces 
Safe Spaces is a community leadership 
development and peace promotion project. 
It emphasizes the importance of community 

responsibility for safe physical and emotional 
spaces for nurturing children, fostering 
businesses, and improving the quality of life 
for all. The project was envisioned as a national 
sensitisation movement, and is designed to 
educate, empower and enhance linkages between 
community members and needed resources, to 
address inequalities and build social cohesion.

LUCELEC supported the Ciceron-based pilot, with 
$50,000 in 2018 which included activities planned 
for 2019. The project through community and 
schools components, engaged the community, 
sensitizing them to the importance of peace.  
It provided coaching in conflict resolution, 
mediation, parental nurturing and positive 
discipline skills. It also provided links to community 
services and income-generating opportunities, 
identified employment and earning opportunities 
through cooperation with local businesses and 
encouragement of entrepreneurship,fostered 
community cooperation and volunteerism, and 
provided community education on all of the above. 

Launch of Safe Spaces Futsal Peace League
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With the success of this pilot, in 2019 Safe Spaces 
progressed with engagement of Central Castries 
through a Futsal Peace League competition with 
points and attractive prizes for positive community 
activities as well as game wins, a Mobile Health 
Clinic ‘safe space’ serving communities with free 
healthcare and education, and development of a 
unique parent-led parenting programme. A Safe 
Spaces Parenting Programme Manual is nearing 
completion for publication.

In 2020 Safe Spaces will be expanding into other 
at-risk communities and introducing additional 
programmes such as community gardens, agri-
processing and fruit-drying, home repairs for 
identified needy community members, and the 
installation of solar panels for the identified safe 
spaces and some needy residents’ homes.  And 
LUCELEC is committed to continue partnering with 
the Safe Spaces initiative to build better and safer 
communities.

St. Lucia National Trust - New Trail for Pigeon 
Island
LUCELEC partnered with the St. Lucia National 
Trust to add 1 km of hiking trail to the Pigeon Island 

National Landmark and open up the northern part 
of the park.  The new attraction was designed and 
funded by LUCELEC at a cost of over $90,000 and 
will add value to one of the country’s most visited 
national sites. The new trail includes safety railings, 
reinforcements to prevent land slippage, landings for 
taking in the views and for photography, and steps 
in certain areas to make navigating the trail a little 
easier and minimise the possibility of patrons slipping. 

The Trust expects the added attraction to translate 
into increased patronage which will help the Trust 
to earn its keep, especially as grant funding for its 
operations has declined in recent years. LUCELEC 
and the Trust have collaborated on several projects 
previously and in supporting the National Trust in 
that way, LUCELEC demonstrates its continuing 
commitment to heritage conservation.

Information on of some of the other sponsorships 
and donations made during 2019 are provided below.

Tourism
Our longstanding support for the tourism sector 
and its major events such as the Taste of the 
Caribbean Competition, Jazz Festival and Soleil 
Summer Festival, continued. As did our support for 
annual staff awards at several hotels.

Business
We continued to support the Saint Lucia Business 
Awards and Global Entrepreneurship Week both 
organized by the St. Lucia Chamber of Commerce 
that respectively recognised business excellence 
and encouraged entrepreneurship.  We supported 
the Windward and Leeward Brewery Limited’s 
Oktoberfest En Kwéyòl as well as inter-commercial 
sporting competitions.

Education
LUCELEC has long supported the education sector 
by helping to improve educational infrastructure or 
providing opportunities to students that they may 
not have had otherwise.

New Pigeon Island Trail in construction stage
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In 2019 we continued to be one of the principal 
sponsors of the National Schools’ Science and 
Technology Fair, as well as provided the annual 
scholarship for a top St. Lucian science student 
to participate in the annual regional Student 
Programme for Innovation in Science and 
Engineering (SPISE). 

We supported annual graduation ceremonies, 
calypso competitions and sports meets at 
schools at all levels of the education system, 
the Francophonie Spelling Bee competition in 
celebration of the International Francophonie 
Day and a Kwéyòl Poetry Writing Competition. 
We also contributed to educational immersion 
programmes for students studying French and 
Spanish at the Sir Arthur Lewis Community College 
and various secondary schools, scholarships 
for children attending secondary school and the 
payment of examination fees through the Sir John 
Compton Memorial Fund, the purchase of musical 
instruments for a school orchestra, the purchase 
of a public address system for a secondary school, 
the reinstatement of a Technical Drawing Lab, and 
after school programmes.

We also continued our support of the Junior 
Achievement Programme of the Choiseul 
Secondary School and hosted more than 50 

students from universities, the Sir Arthur Lewis 
Community College and various secondary schools 
in our annual Summer Employment Programme, 
from June 1 - August 31. 

Arts & Culture
Our support for arts and culture spans practically 
the entire gamut of the various arts and cultural 
forms. This included long standing cultural festivals 
and artists as well, Jounen Kwéyòl, Carnival bands, 
the 2019 Calypso Season, the Pantime Steel 
Orchestra, and the Babonneau Steel Orchestra. 

We supported the presentation of two productions 
at the regional celebration of arts and culture of the 
Caribbean at CARIFESTA 2019, the 2019 Caribbean 
Youth Film Festival, dance festivals, acting 
workshops and movie productions, the Cultural 
Development Foundation’s Artsfuzion 2019, and 
the Monchy La Woz Group’s commemoration of the 
annual La Rose Flower Festival.  

The Company also contributed $25,000 to the 
Folk Research Centre’s fund for rebuilding its 
headquarters which was destroyed by fire.

Sports
LUCELEC assists clubs and associations with 
participation in and the hosting of local, regional 

Governor General H. E. Sir Emmanuel Neville 
Cenac reviews exhibits at the LUCELEC-

sponsored National Science Fair

LUCELEC Sponsored CFC Youth Football 
Tournament
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and international tournaments.  We assist 
individual schools and the education districts 
with putting on their respective annual meets as 
well.  Our overall aim is to contribute meaningfully 
to the development of sport on the island and to 
provide avenues for young people to develop their 
respective talents and to excel.

We assisted national associations such as the St. 
Lucia Amateur Body Building & Fitness Association 
with hosting its Annual National Bodybuilding 
Championship, the St. Lucia Amateur Swimming 
Association (SLASA) with participation in the 
regional swim meets for 2019, the St. Lucia 
Rugby Football Union with the Michael Mathurin 
Challenge (named after a deceased employee 
who was very active in the sport), the Saint 
Lucia Basketball Federation with its national 
development programme and participation in the 
Caribbean Hoops College Camp Exposure, the St. 
Lucia National Netball Association with St. Lucia’s 
participation in the Caribbean Youth Tournament, 
Special Olympics Saint Lucia to participate in the 
Special Olympics World Games 2019, the St. Lucia 
Tennis Association with the National Independence 
Tennis Tournament, the Sports and Combat Sambo 
Federation St. Lucia with participation in the Pan 

American Sambo Championship, and the Saint 
Lucia Volleyball Association with the Under-19 
national male and female teams’ participation in 
the 2019 ECVA Junior Volleyball Championships.   

Several clubs and organisations such as the 
Rockets Athletics Club, Royal St. Lucia Police Force,
Mon Repos Youth & Sports Council, Premier Sports 
Inc., Rodney Heights Aquatic Centre, Cue Sports St. 
Lucia, Saint Lucia Moto X Club, Elite Track and Field, 
Monchy United Football Club, B-Fit Saint Lucia, 
Gros Islet Cricket Association, The Cobra Karate 
and Self Defence Club, Castries Football Council, 
Big Players Football Club, St. Lucia Fire Service, 
Cheetah Athletics Team and Tigers InFlow Tennis 
Academy, all received support for various sporting 
and athlete development activities. 

Youth at Risk/Youth Development
In addition to the two major interventions 
highlighted earlier, the Company supports various 
youth camps during the Easter and summer 
vacations in an effort to keep participating youth 
occupied with productive activity and to provide 
opportunities that they may not otherwise have 
had. The various homes for youth at risk also 
received assistance from LUCELEC including the 
Transit Home and the Upton Gardens Girls’ Centre.
In addition, the Company teamed up with the Faux-
a-Chaud Dance Academy in its hosting of its annual 
dance production to showcase the talent of young 
people in that inner-city community. 

Health & Wellness
Consistent with LUCELEC’s own focus on 
safety, health and wellness for its employees, 
the Company extended its support to the wider 
community through its annual $25,000 donation 
to the National Community Foundation towards 
persons seeking assistance with medical 
interventions.  The Company also supported 
various health and wellness organisations and 
support groups such as the St. Lucia Diabetes & 
Hypertensive Association and Faces of Cancer 

Special Olympics Team
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with several activities to create awareness of 
health issues and provide services and support to 
vulnerable groups and individuals. 

The Company also teamed up with other corporate 
entities to raise awareness of health issues such 
as a cancer awareness walk organised by CIBC 
First Caribbean International Bank, HTS/Radio 
100’s Strut For A Cause, and Club Gar in its Walk 
4 a Cause which raised awareness of and funds 
for children affected by cerebral palsy, Friends 
of Victoria to assist the World Paediatric Project 
St. Lucia, and the Saint Lucia Medical & Dental 
Association with its Annual Continuing Education 
Medical Conference. 

Charitable Contributions
Several agencies with a charitable mandate 
continued to get assistance from LUCELEC in 
meeting the needs of their respective clientele.   The 
Salvation Army, the Ex-Service Men and Women’s 
League, the Lions, Rotary and Lions Clubs, St. Lucia 
Blind Welfare Association, The Saint Lucia Autism 
Awareness Project, Saint Lucia Red Cross, the Child 
Development and Guidance Centre, and some of 
the homes for the elderly - the Marian Home, the St. 
Lucy’s Home, Cornerstone,Villa St. Joseph Home - all 
received LUCELEC assistance in 2019. 

The Company also continued its support for 
the National Council of and for Persons with 
Disabilities’ annual Camp Lajwa where for a few 
days it takes some of the persons with disabilities, 
particularly those who are generally house-bound, 
on various outings to experience the outdoors and 
other aspects of St. Lucian life.  

The Company also supports various feeding 
programmes within the community with regular 
contributions to agencies like Feed the Poor 
Ministry Inc. And at Christmas time, LUCELEC 
supports various agencies, organisations and 
groups in their Christmas outreach to assist 
day-care and pre-schools, the unemployed, senior 
homes, hospitals and underprivileged children with 
subsidies, food hampers and Christmas parties.  

Staff Volunteerism
Perhaps nowhere else is the demonstration of 
our Power of Caring more profound than with our 
employees volunteering their time and resources 
to make a difference in the community. Led by 
Team Lighthouse from the Company’s southern 
offices, our staff continued their Breakfast Always 
Matters (BAM) and Give Lunch A Day (GLAD) 
programmes to fund and deliver breakfast and 
lunch to needy school children and hampers to 
schools across the island. 

Cancer Awareness Walk

Staff volunteer at the St. Lucy’s Home
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LUCELEC contributes to the upkeep of St. Lucy’s Home

The Company continued its “Operation School Box” 
initiative where staff members contribute school 
supplies that are donated to underprivileged children 
around the island. We also partnered with the National 
Volunteer Programme on Good Deeds Day to visit 
with and feed the elderly at the St. Lucy’s Home. 

Through the LUCELEC Sports Club, team members 
volunteered to power wash and paint some parts of 
the Odsan Combined School and their lunch tables.  
Our team members also volunteer as mentors for the 
Chamber of Commerce’s St. Lucia Youth Business 
Trust and Junior Achievement Programmes. 

Conclusion
LUCELEC’s corporate social responsibility thrust 
is driven by the Company’s deep commitment to 
meaningful engagement with the communities we 
live in and serve.  We recognise that as a Company 
we do not exist outside the communities we 
operate in, and our success is only as sustainable 
as the communities we build and the relationships 
that derive therefrom.  We are more than just the 
power company! We are the Power of Caring and 
the energy that powers our nation’s success.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Shareholders of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited  
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited 
and its Subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 
December 31, 2019, and the consolidated statements of changes in equity, comprehensive income and cashflow 
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group) as at 
December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in St. Lucia and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed 
the matter is provided in that context. 
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2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D) 
 
Energy Sales  

Revenue from energy sales is based on meter readings which are carried out on a rotational basis throughout 
each month.  A provision for the current month’s billing, excluding the fuel surcharge, is made to record unbilled 
energy sales at the end of each month.   The estimate is based on the actual information for the preceding month 
and is periodically assessed for reasonableness.  We consider energy sales to be a key audit matter because, in 
addition to the judgement involved in determining the unbilled energy sales, revenue recognised depends on  
(a) the complete capture of energy consumption based on meter readings on various dates, (b) the propriety of 
the rates computed and applied across customer categories and (c) the reliability of the IT systems involved in 
processing the billing transactions.  
 
Note 4(l) to the consolidated financial statements provides the detailed disclosures related to this matter. 
 
Audit response 
 
We obtained an understanding and evaluated the design of, as well as tested the controls over, the customer file 
maintenance, accumulation and processing of meter data, and interface of data from the billing system to the 
financial reporting system. In addition, we performed a test recalculation of the billed amounts and compared 
them with the amounts reflected in the billing statements. We involved our internal Information Technology  
(IT) specialist in understanding the IT processes and in understanding and testing the IT general controls over the 
IT systems supporting the revenue process. 
 
Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables  
 
On July 24, 2014 the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments to replace IAS 39. IFRS 9 became effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  The 
Group adopted the standard on January 1, 2018.  The standard requires the use of forward-looking information 
in arriving at the expected credit loss (ECL) for financial assets.   
 
The Group applied the practical expedient allowed under IFRS 9 in determining the provision for impairment of 
trade receivables.  This took the form of a provision matrix based on account categories of trade receivables 
except for accounts relating to related parties and other receivables and incorporated forward-looking 
information in arriving at a loss rate.   For related parties and other receivables, the ECL was determined based 
on probability-weighted default outcomes, past events, current conditions and forward-looking information.  
 
We considered the impairment provision for trade and other receivables to be a key audit matter as the 
assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, the selection of the forecast economic 
conditions and the expected credit loss are significant estimates which require judgement.  The amount of ECL 
is sensitive to the changes in circumstances and the forecast economic conditions and can have a significant 
impact on the estimate of the provision for impairment of trade receivables. 
 
Notes 11 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements provide the detailed disclosures related to this matter. 
 
Audit response 
 
We gained an understanding of management’s process for determining the impairment provision for financial 
assets.  In addition, we performed the following:   
 

a. Reviewed the IFRS 9 methodology document developed by management for providing guidance in 
determining the ECL. 

b. Gained an understanding of the assumptions underlying the model. 
c. Validated the underlying economic data applied in developing the forward-looking information. 
d. Reviewed the degree of correlation of the historical default rates and the economic data.  
e. Tested the completeness and accuracy of the data inputs used   in the model to the underlying 

accounting records. 
f. Checked the calculation of the resulting loss rate.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D) 
 
Provisions and contingencies 
 
The Group is involved in certain proceedings and claims for which the Group has recognized provisions for 
probable costs and/or expenses, which may be incurred, and/or has disclosed relevant information about such 
contingencies. This matter is significant to our audit because the determination of whether any provision should 
be recognized and the estimation of the potential liability resulting from these assessments require significant 
judgment by management. The inherent uncertainty over the outcome of these matters is brought about by the 
differences in the interpretation and implementation of the relevant laws and regulations. 
 
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements provides the relevant disclosures related to this matter. 
 
Audit response 
 
We examined the bases of management’s assessment of the possible outcomes and the related estimates of the 
probable costs and/or expenses that are recognized and/or disclosed in the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements. We discussed with management the status of the claims and/or assessments and obtained 
correspondences with the relevant authorities and opinions from the legal counsels. We also reviewed the 
disclosures on provisions and contingencies in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
Other Matter 
 
The financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 were audited by another auditor 
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on March 8, 2019. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.  
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D) 
 
Other Information Included in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report 
 
Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report other than the 
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other 
information. The Group’s 2019 Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this 
auditor’s report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the 2019 Annual Report, if we conclude that there  
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charges with 
governance.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Group’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D) 
 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charge with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Andrea St. 
Rose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
Castries, St. Lucia 
September 21, 2020 
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St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                  6 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 

 

 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- 
 

   
Director  Director 

  2019 2018 
 Notes $'000 $’000 
Assets    
Non-current     
Property, plant and equipment 7 351,729 348,085 
Right-of-use assets 8 1,738 - 
Intangible assets 9 12,345 11,228 
Total non-current assets  365,812 359,313 
Current    
Inventories 10 12,435 12,183 
Trade, other receivables and prepayments 11 53,636 67,796 
Other financial assets 12 41,839 35,294 
Derivative financial instruments 26 2,549 - 
Income tax recoverable  - 2,800 
Cash and cash equivalents 13 48,020 17,659 
Total current assets  158,479 135,732 
Total assets  524,291 495,045 
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities    
Shareholders’ equity    
Share capital  14 80,163 80,163 
Retained earnings    169,120 161,609 
Fair value reserve 15 981 (1,521) 
Revaluation reserve 16 15,351 15,351 
Self-insurance reserve 17 40,805 36,617 
Total shareholders’ equity  306,420 292,219 
Liabilities    
Non-current    
Lease liabilities 18 1,318 - 
Borrowings 19 94,633 89,924 
Consumer deposits 20 19,488 18,240 
Provision for other liabilities 21 1,485 1,485 
Deferred tax liability 22 32,492 32,572 
Post-employment medical benefit liabilities 24(b) 2,220 2,114 
Total non-current liabilities  151,636 144,335 
Current    
Lease liabilities 18 440 - 
Borrowings 19 16,891 12,279 
Trade and other payables 25 44,491 33,211 
Derivative financial instruments 26 - 11,285 
Dividends payable  325 1,716 
Income tax payable  4,088 - 
Total current liabilities  66,235 58,491 
Total liabilities  217,871 202,826 
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities  524,291 495,045 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                  7 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars except earnings per share) 

 

 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
 

  2019 2018 
 Notes $’000 $’000 
Revenue    
Energy sales  309,187 307,880 
Other revenue  3,254 2,795 
  312,441 310,675 
Operating expenses    
Fuel costs  34 155,873 156,065 
Transmission and distribution  40,728 41,901  
Generation  28,810 25,793 
 34 225,411 223,759 
Gross income  87,030 86,916 
Administrative expenses 34 (34,036) (32,990) 
Operating profit  52,994 53,926 
Interest income  836 719 
Fair value gain/(loss) on FVTPL financial assets 12 2,474 (1,845) 
Other gains, net 27 901 60 
Profit before finance costs and taxation  57,205 52,860 
Finance costs 28 (5,486) (5,233) 
Profit before taxation  51,719 47,627 
Taxation 29 (13,729) (12,662) 
Net profit for the year   37,990 34,965 
Other comprehensive income/(loss):    
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:    
Fair value gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets 12 28 (7) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:    
Re-measurement losses of defined benefit pension plans, net of tax 29 (439) (5,169) 
Total other comprehensive loss  (411) (5,176) 
Total comprehensive income for the year  37,579 29,789 
Basic and diluted earnings per share ($) 30 1.66 1.53 

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars)
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St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                                                       8 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 

 

 

  Share Retained Fair Value Revaluation Self-insurance  
  Capital Earnings Reserve Reserve Reserve Total 
 Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Balance at January 1, 2018  80,163 154,387 331 15,351 33,972 284,204 
Total comprehensive income for the year  - 29,796 (7) - - 29,789 
Transfer to fair value reserve 15 - 1,845 (1,845) - - - 
Transfer to self-insurance reserve 17 - (2,645) - - 2,645 - 
Ordinary dividends 32 - (21,774) - - - (21,774) 
Balance at December 31, 2018  80,163 161,609 (1,521) 15,351 36,617 292,219 
Balance at January 1, 2019   80,163 161,609 (1,521) 15,351 36,617 292,219 
Total comprehensive income for the year  - 37,551 28 - - 37,579 
Transfer to fair value reserve 15 - (2,474) 2,474 - - - 
Transfer to self-insurance reserve 17 - (4,188) - - 4,188 - 
Ordinary dividends 32 - (23,378) - - - (23,378) 
Balance at December 31, 2019  80,163 169,120 981 15,351 40,805 306,420 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
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  2019 2018 
 Notes $’000 $’000 
Cash flows from operating activities    
Profit before taxation  51,719 47,627 
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7 33,551 35,541 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 547 - 
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 2,030 1,984 
Interest income  (836) (719) 
Finance costs 28 5,486 5,233 
Impairment losses/(gains) on trade and other receivables  717 (32) 
Net pension costs 23(h) & 24(d) 863 1,593 
Fair value (gain)/loss on FVTPL financial assets 12 (2,474) 1,845 
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 27 (88) 24 
Gain on disposal of financial assets 27 (725) - 
Operating profit before working capital changes  90,790 93,096 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (252) 1,537 
Decrease/(increase) in trade, other receivables and prepayments  2,158 (8,741) 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  8,729 (12,497) 
Cash generated from operations  101,425 73,395 
Interest received  747 702 
Benefits paid on post-employment medical plan 24(f) (52) (50) 
Finance costs paid  (5,297) (5,205) 
Income tax paid  (6,733) (13,842) 
Net cash from operating activities  90,090 55,000 
Cash flows from investing activities    
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 7 (37,066) (34,461) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  94 1 
Acquisition of intangible assets  9 (3,282) (1,609) 
Pension funding contributions 23(e) (1,332) (8,850) 
Acquisition of other financial assets  (24,036) (6,620) 
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets  20,807 10,163 
Net cash used in investing activities  (44,815) (41,376) 
Cash flows from financing activities    
Repayment of lease liabilities  (527) - 
Proceeds from borrowings  21,600 20,000 
Repayment of borrowings  (12,279) (18,472) 
Dividends paid  (24,769) (20,499) 
Net collection of consumer deposits  1,061 362 
Net cash used in financing activities  (14,914) (18,609) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  30,361 (4,985) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13 17,659 22,644 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 48,020 17,659 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



- 51 -

ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Index to Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited 
Index to Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

 

 
 
 
Note 1 Incorporation and Principal Activity 

Note 2 Date of Authorisation of Issue 

Note 3 Basis of Preparation 

Note 4 Significant Accounting Policies 

Note 5 Determination of Fair Values 

Note 6 Financial Risk Management 

Note 7 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Note 8 Right-of-use Assets 

Note 9 Intangible Assets 

Note 10 Inventories 

Note 11 Trade, Other Receivables and Prepayments 

Note 12 Other Financial Assets 

Note 13 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Note 14 Share Capital 

Note 15 Fair Value Reserve 

Note 16 Revaluation Reserve 

Note 17 Self-insurance Reserve 

Note 18 Lease Liabilities 

Note 19 Borrowings 

Note 20 Consumer Deposits 

Note 21 Provision for Other Liabilities 

Note 22 Deferred Tax Liability 

Note 23 Retirement Benefits Liabilities 

Note 24 Post-employment Medical Benefit Liabilities 

Note 25 Trade and Other Payables 

Note 26 Derivative Financial Instruments 

Note 27 Other Gains, Net 

Note 28 Finance Costs 

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited



ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

- 52 -

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited
Index to Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited 
Index to Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d) 

 

 

 
 
 
Note 29 Taxation 

Note 30 Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 

Note 31 Tariff Reduction 

Note 32 Ordinary Dividends 

Note 33 Related Parties 

Note 34 Expenses by Nature 

Note 35 Employee Benefit Expenses 

Note 36 Financial Instruments 

Note 37 Commitments 

Note 38 Contingent Liabilities 

Note 39 Subsidiary Companies 

Note 40 Events after the Reporting Period 



- 53 -

ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                 10 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 

 

 

 
 
 
1. Incorporation and Principal Activity 

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of Saint Lucia on 
November 9, 1964 and re-registered as a public company on August 11, 1994.  The Company was 
continued under the Companies Act 1996 of Saint Lucia on October 22, 1997 and is listed on the Eastern 
Caribbean Securities Exchange.  The Company operates under the Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as 
amended) (ESA). The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include the 
generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and the operation of a self-insurance fund 
and a trust.  

The Group’s registered office and principal place of business is situated at LUCELEC Building, Sans Souci, 
John Compton Highway, Castries, Saint Lucia. 

2. Date of Authorisation of Issue 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on September 11, 2020. 

3. Basis of Preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”). 

(b) Basis of measurement 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis except 
for land, derivative financial instruments and other financial assets which are measured at fair 
value.  The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in Note 5. 

(c) Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and 
entities controlled by the Company as disclosed in Note 39.  Control is achieved when the 
Company: 
• Has power over the investee; 
• Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
• Has the ability to use its power to affect its return. 
 
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.  Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement 
of financial position and consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the 
Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies in line with the Company’s accounting policies. 

All intracompany assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between members of the Company are eliminated on consolidation.
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3. Basis of Preparation (Cont’d) 

(d) Functional and presentation currency 
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Eastern Caribbean dollars, which is the 
Group’s functional currency.  All financial information is rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. 

(e) Use of estimates and judgments 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual 
results may differ from those estimates.   

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
periods affected. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:  

 Note 4(b)(iii): Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
 Note 4(c): Estimation of the lease term and assessment of whether a right-of-use           

asset is impaired  
 Note 4(d)(iii): Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 
 Note 4(e):  Measurement of defined benefit obligations 
 Note 4(g): Estimation of impairment 
 Note 4(h) Estimation of net realisable value of inventories 
 Note 4(l):  Estimation of unbilled sales and fuel surcharge 
 Note 5:  Determination of fair values 
 Note 36:  Valuation of financial instruments 

 
4. Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these 
consolidated financial statements, except where stated otherwise. 

(a) Foreign currency 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Group’s functional currency at the foreign 
exchange rates at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign 
exchange rate at that date.  The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference 
between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for 
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency 
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period.  Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
dates of the initial transactions.  Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(b) Property, plant and equipment 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except for land which is 
measured at fair value. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any 
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its 
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site 
on which they are located.  Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of 
the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as consolidated items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. 

The gain or loss on the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the 
item and is recognised within “other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income. 

(ii) Subsequent expenditure 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in 
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.  
The carrying amount of  the replaced part is derecognised.  The costs of the day-to-day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated statement 
of comprehensive income as incurred.  
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(b) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 

(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and 
equipment.  Land is not depreciated.  No depreciation is provided on work-in-progress 
until the assets involved have been completed and are available for use.   

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting 
date. 

The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:  

 2019 2018 
Buildings 21/2 % - 121/2% per annum 21/2 % -121/2% per annum 
Plant and machinery   
 - Generator overhauls 331/3% per annum 331/3% per annum 
 - Other 4% - 10% per annum 4% - 10% per annum 
Motor vehicles 20% - 331/3% per annum 20% - 331/3% per annum 
Furniture and fittings   
 - Computer hardware 20% per annum 20% per annum 
 - Other 10% per annum 10% per annum 

 

(iv) Revaluation reserve 

Revaluation related to land is credited to revaluation reserve account in the equity 
section of the consolidated statement of financial position (Note 16). 

(c) Leases 

As indicated in Note 4(q)(i) below, the Group has applied IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ using the modified 
retrospective approach from January 1, 2019.  Therefore, comparative information has not been 
restated and is still reported under IAS 17, ‘Leases’. 

Accounting policy applicable from January 1, 2019: 

The Group as a lessee 

For any new contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2019, the Group considers whether a 
contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that 
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration’.   

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability 
on the consolidated statement of financial position.   

Right-of-use assets 

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle 
and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the 
lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-to-use asset or the 
end of the lease term.  The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such 
indicators exist.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(c) Leases (Cont’d) 

Accounting policy applicable from January 1, 2019 (Cont’d): 

Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the 
lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if 
that rate is readily available, or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the carrying amount of the lease liability is increased to 
reflect the interest on the lease (calculated using the effective interest method) and is reduced 
to reflect the lease payments made. 

The Group re-measures the lease liability to reflect any modification or reassessment of the lease 
contract, such as a change in the lease term or change in the assessment of whether a renewal 
option will be exercised, in which case the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the 
revised lease payments by a revised discount rate.  When the lease liability is re-measured, the 
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the related right-of-use asset, or profit or loss if the 
right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 
12 months or less) using the practical expedients.  Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and 
lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The Group as a lessor 
 
The Group’s accounting policy under the new standard has not changed from the comparative 
period. As a lessor, the Group classifies all its leases as operating as the leases do not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. 

The Group earns income from rental of poles. Rental from these operating leases is recognised 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Accounting policy applicable before January 1, 2019: 

The Group as a lessee 
The Group treats all its leases as operating leases.  Payments on operating lease agreements are 
recognised as an expense on straight-line basis over the lease term.  Associated costs, such as 
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred. 

The Group as a lessor 

The Group earns income from rental of poles. Rental from these operating leases is recognised 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

(d) Intangible assets  

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured 
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.  

(ii) Subsequent expenditure  

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic 
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(d) Intangible assets (Cont’d) 

(iii) Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset less its residual value.  Amortisation 
is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets, other than way leave rights and 
work-in-progress, from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely 
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied 
in the asset. The estimated useful lives for the assets that are amortised, that is, 
information systems, range from five (5) years to eight (8) years.  

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted if appropriate.  

(e) Employee benefits 

(i) Defined benefit plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined 
contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is 
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that 
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair value of any plan assets is 
deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government securities 
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that 
are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. 
The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit 
Credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised 
asset is limited to the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in 
future contributions to the plan. 

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating 
to past service by employees is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits 
vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement 
of comprehensive income. 

The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions in other comprehensive income in the period in which 
they occur.  

(ii) Pension benefits assumptions 

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are 
determined by independent qualified actuaries using a number of assumptions.  The 
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pension include the expected 
long-term rate of return on the relevant plans assets and the discount rate.  Any changes 
in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations. 

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.  This is the 
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of the estimated future 
cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations and also to 
determine the expected return on plan assets.  In determining the appropriate discount 
rate, the Group considers the interest rates of the Government bonds that are 
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to 
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(e) Employee benefits (Cont’d) 

(ii) Pension benefits assumptions (Cont’d) 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market 
conditions.  Additional information is disclosed in Note 23. 

(iii) Defined contribution plans 

For its defined contribution plan, the Group pays contributions to a privately 
administered pension insurance plan on a mandatory basis. The Group has no further 
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future 
payments is available. 

(iv) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the entity is demonstrably 
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either 
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination 
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination 
benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the entity has made 
an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, 
and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. 

If benefits are payable more than twelve (12) months after the reporting period, then 
they are discounted to that present value. 

(f) Financial instruments 

(i) Non-derivative financial instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), financial assets measured at fair value 
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 
borrowings, trade and other payables, consumer deposits and dividends payable. 

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for 
instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are 
measured as described below. 

FVTOCI financial assets 

The Group’s investments in treasury bills and commercial paper are classified as financial 
assets measured at FVTOCI.  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair 
value.  Changes in the carrying amount of these financial assets relating to interest 
income calculated using the effective interest rate, impairment losses and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.  Other changes are recognised 
in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the fair value reserve.  
When an investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive 
income is transferred to profit or loss. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(f) Financial instruments (Cont’d) 

(i) Non-derivative financial instruments (Cont’d) 

FVTPL financial assets 

The Group’s investments in mutual and income funds are classified as financial assets 
measured at FVTPL.  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value.  
Changes in the carrying amount of these financial assets relating to interest income 
calculated using the effective interest rate, impairment losses, fair value and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are carried initially at fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost less any impairment.  A provision for impairment of trade and other 
receivables is established based on lifetime expected credit losses.  The amount of the 
provision is recognised in profit or loss. 

Trade and other receivables, being short-term, are not discounted. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and demand deposits with maturities 
three months or less.  Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral 
part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.  

Accounting for interest income and costs is discussed in Note 4(n). 

Borrowings  

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds, net of 
transaction costs incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is 
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve (12) months 
after the reporting date. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the costs of 
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings, pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted from the cost of those assets. All 
other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income in the period in which they are incurred. 

Trade and other payables 

Liabilities for trade and other payables which are normally settled on 30 to 90-day terms 
and conditions are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid 
in the future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Group. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(f) Financial instruments (Cont’d) 

(i) Non-derivative financial instruments (Cont’d) 

Consumer deposits 

Given the long-term nature of the consumer relationship in accordance with the 
provisions of the Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as amended), consumer deposits are shown 
in the consolidated statement of financial position as non-current liabilities (that is, not 
likely to be repaid within twelve months of the reporting date). 

Dividends payable  

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when 
they are approved by the Group’s Board of Directors. Dividends for the year that are 
approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the end of the 
reporting date. 

(ii) Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net 
of any tax effects. 

(g) Impairment  

(i) Financial assets 

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS requires the use of a forward-
looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach.  

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the 
asset unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in 
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. 

The Group’s financial assets mainly comprise of trade and other receivables and financial 
assets measured at FVTOCI and FVTPL. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has voluntarily 
elected to select an accounting policy which recognizes full lifetime expected credit 
losses for trade receivables.  

A practical expedient method, in the form of a provision matrix, was applied for trade 
receivables based on customer categories, historical credit loss experiences and future 
economic expectations. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed 
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The 
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic 
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic 
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The 
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade and other receivables is disclosed in 
Note 36. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(g) Impairment (Cont’d) 

(i) Financial assets 

For all other receivables that possess varying default occurrences, the ECL was 
determined based on probability-weighted default outcome, past events, current 
conditions and forward-looking information. 

For financial assets measured at FVTOCI, an ECL probabilistic approach was used based 
on:  

(a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating 
range of possible outcomes; 

(b) the time value of money; and 
(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or 

effort at the reporting date, about past events, current conditions and forecasts 
of future economic conditions. 

 
The key elements of the ECL calculations are outlined below: 

(a) Probability of Default: This measures the instances of customer defaults over a 
period, divided by the number of accounts at the beginning of a period.  

(b) Loss Given Default: This represents amounts never collected or amounts written 
off once a receivable defaults. 

(c) Exposure at Default: This represents the outstanding amounts collectible at 
default. 

 
Forward-looking information: 

In its ECL models, the Group relied on a range of forward-looking information as 
economic inputs, such as: 

 GDP growth 
 Inflation 
 Unemployment rates 

Given that the investment funds are classified as FVTPL, no separate impairment 
assessment is necessary as all changes in fair value are immediately recognised through 
profit or loss. 

(ii) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in 
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating 
unit”).  
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(g) Impairment (Cont’d) 

 (ii) Non-financial assets (Cont’d) 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in 
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and 
then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a 
pro rata basis. 

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at 
each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 

(h) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  The cost of inventories 
is based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
existing location and condition.  Allowance is made for slow-moving and damaged goods. Goods 
in transit are stated at their invoice cost. 

(i) Prepayments 

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but are already paid. Prepayments are initially 
recorded as assets and measured at the amount paid. Subsequently, these are charged to the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they are consumed in the operations or 
expire with passage of time. 

Prepayments are classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as current asset 
when it is expected to be collected within one year. Otherwise, prepayments are classified as 
non-current. 

(j) Provision for other liabilities 

Provision for other liabilities are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle 
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

(k) Derivative financial instruments 

The Group holds derivative instruments to manage the volatility of its fuel costs.  Further details 
of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 26. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.  

Management has developed an accounting policy to reflect the economic substance of the effects 
of engaging in the hedging programme as these costs are passed on to the customer.  In 
developing this policy, management has considered the accounting standards of other standard-
setting bodies and accepted industry practice. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(k) Derivative financial instruments (Cont’d) 

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments held by the Group at the 
reporting date give rise to the recognition of deferred fuel costs. Deferred fuel costs recoverable 
represent future revenues and/or receivables associated with the hedging costs incurred that 
will be, or are expected to be, recovered from customers in future periods through the rate-
setting process. Deferred fuel costs payable represents future reductions in revenue associated 
with amounts that will be or are expected to be refunded to customers through the rate-setting 
process. The resulting gain or loss is reported in trade and other payables or trade, other 
receivables and prepayments respectively. 

(l) Revenue recognition 

Sale of energy 

Revenue from energy sales is based on meter readings, which are carried out on a rotational 
basis throughout each month. A provision for the current month’s billings, excluding the fuel 
surcharge, is made to record unbilled energy sales at the end of each month.  This estimate is 
based upon actual information for the preceding months and is reviewed periodically to assess 
reasonableness and adjusted where required. The provision for unbilled sales is included in 
accrued income. 

In addition to the normal tariff rates charged for energy sales, a fuel surcharge is calculated 
which is based on the difference between the cost of fuel used to generate energy sales in the 
current month and the average fuel price for the 12 months preceding January of the current 
year. The surcharge is recovered by applying the month’s surcharge rate to units billed in the 
following month. The provision for unbilled fuel surcharge revenue/rebate is included in accrued 
income. 

Consumer contributions 

In certain specified circumstances, consumers requiring line extensions for electricity supply are 
required to contribute the capital cost of the extensions.  These contributions are recognised in 
income in the same period in which the costs are incurred. Contributions in excess of the 
applicable capital cost of line extensions, where the excess is greater than 5% of the estimated 
cost of the job, arising mainly as a result of changes to job specifications during the 
implementation stage, are refundable to the customers upon finalisation of the total cost of the 
job.  The capital costs of consumer line extensions are included in property, plant and 
equipment. 

(m) Expenses 

Expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when a 
decrease in future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability 
has arisen that can be reliably measured. Expenses are recognised: on the basis of a direct 
association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis 
of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise 
over several accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly 
determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, 
and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for 
recognition in the consolidated statement of financial position as an asset. 

Expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are presented using the 
function of expense method. These are costs incurred that are associated with the premium 
revenue and costs attributable to administrative and other business activities of the Group. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(n) Interest income and finance costs 

Interest income comprises interest on funds invested and gains on the disposal of other financial 
assets that are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
or loss, using the effective interest method. 

Finance costs comprise interest expense on lease liabilities, borrowings, consumer deposits and 
pole rental deposits, losses on disposal of other financial assets and impairment losses recognised 
certain on financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective 
interest method. 

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in “other gains, net” in profit or 
loss. 

(o) Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in 
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, or in 
other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position method, providing for 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.  

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly 
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on 
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or 
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised.  

(p) Earnings per share 

The Group presents basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic 
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is 
calculated by adjusting the inputs to the basic EPS computation for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, if any. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(q) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations 

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the 2019 financial year are 
as follows: 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 have been adopted in these 
consolidated financial statements.  Note: those new standards, amendments and 
interpretations effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 which 
do not affect the Group’s consolidated financial statements have not been disclosed 
below. 

 IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ replaced IAS 17, ‘Leases’ as at January 1, 2019.  It introduces 
significant changes to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction between 
operating and finance leases and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and 
a lease liability at the commencement of the lease, except for short term leases and 
leases of low value assets.  In contrast, requirements for lessor accounting have 
remained largely unchanged. 

The Group has adopted the new standard using the modified retrospective approach 
from January 1, 2019 but has not restated comparative information for the 2018 
reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the 
standard.  Therefore, the comparative information for 2018 is reported under IAS 17 
and is not comparable to the information presented for 2019. The impact of the 
adoption of this new standard on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is 
described below. 

Applying the new standard for all leases (except as noted below), the Group: 

(a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated 
statement of financial position, initially measured at the present value of 
future lease payments; 

(b) Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income; and 

(c) Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented 
within financing activities) and interest (presented within operating activities) 
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. 

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36, ‘Impairment 
of Assets’. 

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less from the date of initial 
application), the Group has opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line 
basis.  This expense is presented within administrative expenses in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(q) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations (Cont’d) 

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the 2019 financial year are 
as follows (Cont’d) 

 IFRS 16, ‘Leases’(Cont’d) 

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments as disclosed 
in the consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2018 to the lease 
liabilities recognized as at January 1, 2019: 

 $’000 
Total operating lease commitments disclosed as at December 31, 2018 958 
Recognition exemption: lease with remaining lease term less than 12 
months (14) 
Overstated lease commitments  (3) 
Operating lease liabilities before discounting 941 
Effect of discounting (99) 
Total operating lease liabilities recognized under IFRS 16 at January 1, 
2019 842 

 
The weighted average rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated 
statement of financial position at the date of initial application was 10.04%. 

 IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ was amended to clarify that for the purpose of 
assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the solely payments of principal and 
interest (“SPPI”) condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive 
reasonable compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for 
prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative compensation do 
not automatically fail SPPI. 

The application of this amendment did not have a material impact on amounts 
reported in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

 IAS 12, ‘Income Taxes’ was amended to clarify that all income tax consequences of 
dividends (i.e. distribution of profits) should be recognised in profit or loss, 
regardless of how the tax arises. 

The application of this amendment did not have a material impact on amounts 
reported in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(q) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations (Cont’d) 

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the 2019 financial year are 
as follows (Cont’d) 

 IAS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’ was amended to clarify that the past service cost (or of 
the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by measuring the defined benefit liability 
(asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered and plan assets 
before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring 
the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a 
surplus position). IAS 19 is now clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling 
that may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is 
determined in a second step and is recognised in the normal manner in other 
comprehensive income. 

The application of this amendment did not have a material impact on amounts 
reported in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

 IAS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’ was amended to clarify that if any specific borrowing 
remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that 
borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when 
calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. 

The application of this amendment did not have a material impact on amounts 
reported in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

 IAS 28, ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ was amended to clarify the 
accounting for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture, which in 
substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, but to 
which equity accounting is not applied.  Entities must account for such interests 
under IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ before applying the loss allocation and 
impairment requirements in IAS 28.   

The application of this amendment did not have a material impact on amounts reported 
in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

 IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ was issued to address the 
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under 
IAS 12, ‘Income Taxes’. 

The application of this amendment did not have a material impact on amounts reported 
in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.  
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

(q) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations (Cont’d) 

(ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective and have 
not been early adopted are as follows: 

 IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ were amended to clarify when 
information is material.  In particular, the amendments clarify: 

(a) That the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the 
effect is similar to omitting or misstating that information, and that an entity 
assesses materiality in the context of the financial statements as a whole, and 

(b) The meaning of “primary users of general-purpose financial statements” to 
whom those financial statements are directed, by defining them as “existing 
and potential investors, lenders and other creditors” that must rely on general 
purpose financial statements for much of the financial information they need. 

This amendment is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. 
It is not anticipated that the application of this amendment will have a material impact 
on amounts reported in respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

5. Determination of Fair Values 

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique.  Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes 
based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in 
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 

Fair value measurements are categorised into Levels 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and  

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 

The carrying values of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables 
and dividends payable are assumed to approximate their fair values at the reporting date due to their 
short-term nature. 
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5. Determination of Fair Values (Cont’d) 

The following table presents the level, valuation techniques and key inputs of the Group’s assets and 
liabilities that are measured or disclosed at fair value at the reporting date: 

 

As at 
December 

31, 2019 

As at 
December 

31, 2018 

 

 

 

Valuation techniques and 
 $’000 $’000  Level  key inputs 
Non-Financial Assets Measured at 
Fair Value   

 
  

Land (Note 7) 28,478 28,477 

 

2 

Market comparable approach. 
Key inputs-Price per square 

foot 
      
Financial Instruments Measured at 
Fair Value   

 
  

Financial Assets      

FVTOCI financial assets (Note 12) 20,269 1,620  2 
Rate index based on quoted 

yields for similar instruments 
      

FVTPL financial assets (Note 12) 21,570 33,674  3 
Discounted cash flows using 

unobservable inputs 

      

Derivative financial asset (Note 26) 2,549 - 

 

2 

Discounted cash flow.  Future 
cash flows are estimated 

based on futures prices and 
discount rates (swap prices 

and LIBOR) rates 
       
Financial Liabilities       

Derivative financial liability (Note 
26) - 11,285 

 

2  

Discounted cash flow.  Future 
cash flows are estimated 

based on futures prices and 
discount rates (swap prices 

and LIBOR) rates 
Financial Instruments Disclosed at 
Fair Value   

 
   

Financial Liabilities       

Lease liabilities (Note 36) 1,680 - 

 

2  

Present value of future lease 
payments, discounted at the 
implicit rate of the lease and 

incremental borrowing rate 
       

Borrowings (Note 36)  85,946 94,320 

 

2  

Present value of future 
principal and interest cash 

flows, discounted at the 
market rate of interest at the 

reporting date 
 

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 or 3 during the year. 
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6. Financial Risk Management  

Overview 

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

 Credit risk 

 Liquidity risk 
 Market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk) 
 Operational risk 

 
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of 
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial 
statements. 

Risk management framework 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Group’s risk management framework. The Board has established an Audit Committee, which oversees 
how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and 
which also reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the 
Group.  The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the Internal Audit Department, which 
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 
which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to 
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles 
and obligations. 
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6. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d) 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument 
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group’s amounts due from 
subsidiary companies, receivables from customers, and cash and cash equivalents. 

Trade and other receivables 

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced significantly by the individual characteristics of each 
customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry in 
which customers operate also have an influence on credit risk.  

The Board of Directors has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed 
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and service terms and conditions 
are offered. 

These payment terms are stipulated under the provisions of the Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as amended) 
and include providing discretion to the Group to require a deposit not exceeding an estimated two month’s 
supply of electricity from any consumer as security for sums due from time to time, and which is refundable 
with interest upon permanent termination of services. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark 
creditworthiness may have their electricity supply withdrawn or terminated in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.   

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents the expected credit losses over the 
lifetime of trade and other receivables. The collective loss allowance is determined using a practical 
expedient method in the form of a provision matrix, based on customer categories, historical credit loss 
experiences and future economic expectations. For all other receivables, an ECL probabilistic approach 
was used.  

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months or 
less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and 
are used by the Group in the management of its short-term commitments. Credit risk is minimised by 
placing cash and cash equivalents with reputable financial institutions. 
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6. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d) 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational 
expenses including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme 
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Group 
maintains the following lines of credit: 

 An overdraft facility of EC$10,000 which is secured. Interest is payable at the rate of 3.95% (2018 
– 3.95%) per annum.   

 Customs bond valued at $600. 

Liquidity risk of derivative financial instruments is minimised as the Group is required to post collateral 
when the mark-to-market exposures have surpassed the credit limits agreed with the relevant 
counterparties. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.  

Currency risk 

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases denominated in currencies other than its functional 
currency. The Group’s exposure to currency risk is minimal since most of its obligations are denominated 
in United States Dollars and the United States dollar has been formally pegged to the Eastern Caribbean 
Dollar at EC$2.70 = US$1.00 since 1976.   

Interest rate risk 

There is no significant interest rate risk arising on the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at December 
31, 2019 and 2018.  The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities are its lease liabilities, borrowings 
and consumer deposits which have fixed rates of interest as disclosed in Notes 18, 19 and 20, respectively. 

Equity risk 

The Group is not exposed to equity price risk as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
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6. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d) 

Market risk (Cont’d) 

Commodity price risk 

Commodity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in commodity prices.  Prices for these commodities are impacted by world 
economic events that dictate the levels of supply and demand.  The Group is not exposed to commodity 
price risk on its derivative financial instruments as, although these instruments are affected by changes 
in the price of fuel, the changes in the value of these instruments are recoverable from customers as 
disclosed in Note 4(k). 

Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with 
the Group’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than 
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and 
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group’s 
operations. The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of 
financial losses and damage to the Group’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control 
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.  

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational 
risk is assigned to the Board of Directors and the senior management. This responsibility is supported by 
the development of overall Group standards for the management of operational risk in the following 
areas:  

 requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of 
transactions 

 requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions 

 compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements 

 documentation of controls and procedures 

 requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of 
controls and procedures to address the risks identified 

 requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action 

 development of contingency plans 

 training and professional development 

 ethical and business standards 

 risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective 
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6. Financial Risk Management (Cont’d) 

Capital management 

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return 
on capital, which the Group defines as net profit for the year divided by average shareholders’ equity. 
The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. 

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher 
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. Under the 
terms of the mortgage debenture agreement, the Group’s total debt shall not exceed two times its 
tangible net worth which currently comprises its share capital and retained earnings.  The Group was in 
compliance with this requirement as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management in 2019 and 2018. 
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment 

   Plant and Motor Furniture Work In  
 Land Buildings Machinery Vehicles and Fittings Progress Total 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Cost        
Balance at January 1, 2018 28,395 87,278 768,000 4,546 18,680 39,561 946,460 
Additions 1 10 13 - 25 34,412 34,461 
Transfers 81 53 48,455 173 2,086 (50,848) - 
Reclassifications from/(to) intangibles 
(Note 9) - - - - 841 (8) 833 
Disposals  - - - - (227) - (227) 
Balance at December 31, 2018 28,477 87,341 816,468 4,719 21,405 23,117 981,527 
Balance at January 1, 2019  28,477 87,341 816,468 4,719 21,405 23,117 981,527 
Additions   1 - 132 23 119 36,791 37,066 
Transfers  - 7 31,681 349 611 (32,648) - 
Reclassifications from intangibles 
(Note 9) - - - - 135 - 135 
Disposals  - - - (614) (48) - (662) 
Balance at December 31, 2019 28,478 87,348 848,281 4,477 22,222 27,260 1,018,066 
Accumulated Depreciation        
Balance at January 1, 2018 - 45,288 534,604 3,480 14,731 - 598,103 
Depreciation charge (Note 34)  - 2,113 31,902 371 1,155 - 35,541 
Eliminated on disposals - - - - (202) - (202) 
Balance at December 31, 2018  - 47,401 566,506 3,851 15,684 - 633,442 
Balance at January 1, 2019  - 47,401 566,506 3,851 15,684 - 633,442 
Depreciation charge (Note 34) - 2,114 29,666 445 1,326 - 33,551 
Eliminated on disposals  - - - (614) (42) - (656) 
Balance at December 31, 2019  - 49,515 596,172 3,682 16,968 - 666,337 
Carrying Amounts         
January 31, 2018 28,395 41,990 233,396 1,066 3,949 39,561 348,357 
December 31, 2018 28,477 39,940 249,962 868 5,721 23,117 348,085 
December 31, 2019 28,478 37,833 252,109 795 5,254 27,260 351,729 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d) 

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land 

The Group’s lands are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation 
of June 3, 2015.  The fair value measurements were performed by an independent and qualified quantity 
surveyor.  The fair values of the land were determined based on the market comparable approach that 
reflects recent transactions prices for similar properties. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s land would have been $13,127 had they been measured at a 
historical cost basis as at December 31, 2019 (2018 - $13,126).  

Assets pledged as security 

As stated in Note 19, borrowings are secured by hypothecary obligations and mortgage debentures 
creating fixed charges over all immovable properties and floating charges over all other assets, all ranking 
pari passu pursuant to a security sharing agreement, and assignment of insurance policies.  

8. Right-of-use Assets 

  Motor  
 Buildings Vehicles Total 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Cost    

Balance at January 1, 2019 102 740 842 
Additions 1,040 403 1,443 
Balance at December 31, 2019 1,142 1,143 2,285 
Accumulated Depreciation    

Balance at January 1, 2019 - - - 
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 34) 127 420 547 
Balance at December 31, 2019 127 420 547 
Carrying Amounts    

January 1, 2019 102 740 842 
December 31, 2019  1,015 723 1,738 
 
The Group has leases for office premises, land and Company vehicles for management staff.  With the 
exception of short-term leases on certain office premises and land, each lease is reflected on the 
consolidated statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability (see Note 18).   
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8. Right-of-use Assets (Cont’d) 

The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of a right-of-use asset: 
 
 No. of 

leases 
Range of remaining 

term 
Average remaining 

lease terms 
No. of leases with 

renewal options 

Buildings 2 1-10 years 6 years 1 
Motor vehicles 13 0-4 years 2 years - 

The Group has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and lease liability for short-term leases 
(leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).  Payments made under such leases are expensed over a 
straight-line basis.  The expense relating to lease payments for 2019 was $44 and is included in 
administrative expenses of $33,424 as disclosed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  
Total cash outflow for leases for 2019 was $527 as disclosed in the consolidated statement of cash flows. 

9. Intangible Assets 

 

Information 
Systems 

$’000 

Way Leave 
Rights 
$’000 

Work In 
Progress 

$’000 
Total 
S’000 

Cost     
Balance at January 1, 2018 21,488 5,427 1,573 28,488 
Additions 75 554 980 1,609 
Transfers 567 - (567) - 
Reclassification from/(to) PPE 
(Note 7) 8 - (841) (833) 

Balance at December 31, 2018 22,138 5,981 1,145 29,264 

Balance at January 1, 2019 22,138 5,981 1,145 29,264 
Additions 4 701 2,577 3,282 
Transfers 2,366 - (2,366) - 
Reclassification to PPE (Note 7) - - (135) (135) 

Balance at December 31, 2019 24,508 6,682 1,221 32,411 

Accumulated Amortization     
Balance at January 1, 2018 16,052 - - 16,052 
Amortized for the year (Note 34) 1,984 - - 1,984 

Balance at December 31, 2018 18,036 - - 18,036 

Balance at January 1, 2019 18,036 - - 18,036 
Amortized for the year (Note 34) 2,030 - - 2,030 

Balance at December 31, 2019 20,066 - - 20,066 

Carrying Amounts     
January 1, 2018 5,436 5,427 1,573 12,436 

December 31, 2018 4,102 5,981 1,145 11,228 

December 31, 2019 4,442 6,682 1,221 12,345 
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9. Intangible Assets (Cont’d) 

Way leave rights, which have an indefinite life period, allow the Group access to properties owned by 
third parties for the purpose of installing and maintaining the Group’s transmission and distribution 
network. 

10. Inventories 

 
11. Trade, Other Receivables and Prepayments 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Trade receivables due from related parties (Note 33(d)(ii)) 6,533 7,786 
Other trade receivables 29,446 33,123 
Trade receivables, gross 35,979 40,909 
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (Note 36) (10,781) (12,757) 
Trade receivables, net 25,198 28,152 
Other receivables due from related parties (Note 33(d)(iii)) 895 880 
Other receivables 9,615 8,194 
Other receivables, gross 10,510 9,074 
Less: provision for impairment of other receivables (Note 36) (1,494) (1,364) 
Other receivables, net 9,016 7,710 

Accrued income 17,248 18,229 
 51,462 54,091 
Deferred fuel costs - 11,285 
Prepayments 2,174 2,420 

 53,636 67,796 
 

The Group’s exposure to credit risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables is 
disclosed in Note 36.

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Fuel inventories 3,092 3,069 
Generation spare parts 5,369 4,774 
Transmission, distribution and other spares 5,317 6,010 
Goods-in-transit 772 389 
 14,550 14,242 
Less:  provision for inventory obsolescence (2,115) (2,059) 
 12,435 12,183 
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12. Other Financial Assets 
 

 
The weighted average effective interest rate was 1.79% (2018 – 1.63%) per annum. 

The other financial assets are not available for the day-to-day operations of the Group (Note 17). 

The movements in other financial assets during the year are as follows:  

 2019 2018 
 $'000 $’000 
Beginning balance  35,294   34,210  
Purchases  24,036   6,620  
Redemptions  (20,807)  (3,730) 
Amortisation of discount  89   46  
Realised fair value gain on redemption  725   - 
Unrealised fair value gain/ (loss) on financial assets measured at 
FVTOCI 

 
28 

 
(7) 

Unrealised fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets measured at FVTPL 2,474  (1,845) 
Ending balance  41,839   35,294  
 

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Cash on hand 15 15 
Cash at bank 48,005 17,644 
 48,020 17,659 
Cash at bank are non-interest bearing. 
 
Included in cash at bank are $1,013 (2018 - $827) that are not available for the day-to-day operations of 
the Group (Note 17). 
 
The Group’s exposure to credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in Note 36. 
 

 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI   
Treasury bills 9,729 1,620 
Commercial paper 10,540 - 
 20,269 1,620 
Financial assets measured at FVTPL   
Investments funds 21,570 33,674 
 41,839 35,294 
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13. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Cont’d) 

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: 

 Non-current Current Non-current Current Consumer  

 lease liabilities lease liabilities borrowings borrowings deposits  

 (Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 19) (Note 19) (Note 20) Total 

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

Balance at January 1, 2018 - - 82,203 18,563 17,761 118,527 
Cash flows during the year - - 20,000 (23,487) 202 (3,285) 
Non-cash flows during the year:       
-Borrowings classified as non-current 
becoming current in 2018 - - (12,279) 12,279 - - 
-Interest accrued in 2018 - - - 4,924 277 5,201 
Balance at December 31, 2018 - - 89,924 12,279 18,240 120,443 
Effect of changes in accounting policy 
for IFRS 16 842 - - - - 842 
Balance at January 1, 2019 842 - 89,924 12,279 18,240 121,285 
Cash flows during the year (610) - 21,600 (17,389) 957 4,558 
Non-cash flows during the year:       
-New leases 1,443 - - - - 1,443 
-Lease liabilities classified as non-
current becoming current in 2019 (440) 440 - - - - 
-Borrowings classified as non-current 
becoming current in 2019 - - (16,891) 16,891 - - 
-Interest accrued in 2019 83 - - 5,110 291 5,484 
Balance at December 31, 2019 1,318 440 94,633 16,891 19,488 132,770 

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019



ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

- 82 -

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                 39 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 
 

 

 
 

14. Share Capital 

 2019 2018 
Authorised   
Voting ordinary shares 100,000 100,000 
Ordinary non-voting shares 800 800 
Preference shares 1,214 1,214 
   
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Issued and fully paid   
22,400,000 voting ordinary shares 77,563 77,563 
520,000 non-voting ordinary shares 2,600 2,600 
 80,163 80,163 
 

15. Fair Value Reserve 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Balance at beginning of year (1,521) 331 
Fair value gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets 28 (7) 
Transferred from retained earnings 2,474 (1,845) 

Balance at end of year 981 (1,521) 
 
The fair value reserve represents the cumulative fair value gains and losses arising on the revaluation of 
financial assets measured at both FVTPL and FVTOCI. 

16. Revaluation Reserve 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Balance at beginning and end of year 15,351 15,351 

 
The revaluation reserve represents the gain realised on the revaluation of the Group’s land.  When land 
is sold, the portion of the revaluation reserve that relates to that asset is transferred directly to retained 
earnings.  Items of other comprehensive income included in the revaluation reserve will not be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss. 

17. Self-insurance Reserve 

 Because of the difficulty experienced by the Group in obtaining adequate and reasonably priced 
commercial insurance coverage primarily on its Transmission and Distribution (“T&D”) assets, the Board 
of Directors gave approval for the establishment of a Self-insurance Fund to provide coverage for its T&D 
assets in the first instance, in the event of natural disasters or similar catastrophic events.  From 2008, 
the Group therefore ceased commercial insurance cover of its T&D assets and undertook on an annual 
basis, to provide for insurance cover and to place amounts into the fund which will be independently 
managed under the terms of a registered Trust Deed.
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17. Self-insurance Reserve (Cont’d) 

During 2011, the Group received formal notification from the Registrar of Insurances of the approval in 
principle, subject to certain conditions, for the establishment of the fund in accordance with the 
Insurance Act of Saint Lucia.  Payments into the fund are exempted from income tax under the authority 
of Statutory Instrument No. 172 of 2007.  

LUCELEC Cap-Ins. Inc. was incorporated on December 31, 2014. This subsidiary company has established 
a reserve which is not available for distribution to the shareholder.   

The fund balance comprises the following: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
FVTOCI financial assets (Note 12) 20,269 1,620 
FVTPL financial assets (Note 12) 21,570 33,674 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) 1,013 827 
 42,852 36,121 

 

The movements in the Self-insurance Reserve were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Balance at beginning of year 36,617 33,972 
Transferred from retained earnings 4,188 2,645 
Balance at end of year 40,805 36,617 
 

18. Lease Liabilities 

 2019 
 $’000 
Current  440 
Non-current 1,318 
 1,758 
 
The weighted average rate of interest applied to lease liabilities is 6.62%. 

Lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying asset (see Note 8).  
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18. Lease Liabilities (Cont’d) 

Future minimum lease payments at year end were as follows: 

 2019 
 $’000 
Between 1 and 2 years 301 
Between 2 and 5 years 504 
Greater than 5 years 513 
 1,318 
 
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risks related to lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 36. 

19. Borrowings 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Current   
Bank borrowings 8,760 4,562 
Related parties 8,131 7,717 
 16,891 12,279 
Non-current   
Bank borrowings 44,241 31,401 
Related parties 50,392 58,523 
 94,633 89,924 
Total borrowings   
Bank borrowings 53,001 35,963 
Related parties (Note 33(d)(v)) 58,523 66,240 
 111,524 102,203 

 
Borrowings are secured by hypothecary obligations and mortgage debentures creating fixed charges over 
all immovable properties and floating charges over all other assets, all ranking pari passu pursuant to a 
security sharing agreement, and assignment of insurance policies (Note 7). 
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19. Borrowings (Cont’d) 

The weighted average effective rates at the reporting date were as follows:  

 2019 2018 
 % % 
Bank borrowings 3.67 3.76 
Related parties 5.35 5.35 

 
Maturity of non-current borrowings:   
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Between 1 and 2 years 17,652 12,866 
Between 2 and 5 years 54,856 42,432 
Over 5 years 22,125 34,626 
 94,633 89,924 
 
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risks related to borrowings is disclosed in Note 36. 

20. Consumer Deposits 

Consumers requesting energy connections are required to pay a deposit that is refundable when the 
service is terminated. Interest is accrued on these deposits at the rate of 2% (2018 - 2%) per annum. 
 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Consumer deposits 15,144 14,083 

Interest accrual 4,344 4,157 
 19,488 18,240 
 

21. Provision for Other Liabilities 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Balance at beginning and end of year 1,485 1,485 
 
The provision represents the most recent reasonable estimated decommissioning costs of the old power 
stations located at Union and Vieux Fort. 
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22. Deferred Tax Liability 

Deferred tax liability is calculated in full on temporary differences under the statement of financial 
position liability method using a principal tax rate of 30% (2018 - 30%).  The movement on the deferred 
tax liability account is as follows: 
 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Balance at beginning of year 32,572 33,596 
Recognised in profit and loss (Note 29) 108 1,191 
Recognised in other comprehensive income (Note 29) (188) (2,216) 
Balance at end of year 32,492 32,572 

 
Deferred tax liability is attributed to the following items: 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Property, plant and equipment 33,164 33,206 
Post-employment medical benefit liabilities (666) (634) 
Leased assets 521 - 
Lease liabilities (527) - 
 32,492 32,572 

 
23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities 

(a) Background 

Grade I Employees  
The Group contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme for Grade I employees who were 
employed prior to January 1, 2008.  The plan is administered and managed by Sagicor Life, 
Inc.(“Sagicor”) 

Grade II Employees 

The Group contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme for Grade II employees who were 
employed prior to January 1, 2008 which, up to December 31, 2008, was administered by CLICO 
International Life Insurance Group Limited (“CLICO”).  Subsequent funding to the plan is 
currently administered by RBC Investments Management (Caribbean) Limited.  

The most recent actuarial valuations of these two plans were completed December 31, 2015 
using the “Projected Unit Credit” method of valuation.  

Grade III Employees 

For its senior employees who were employed prior to January 1, 2008, the Group contributed to 
the regional Eastern Caribbean Utilities Pension Scheme (formerly the CDC Caribbean Pension 
Scheme), which is a multi-employer plan administered by Sagicor Life Inc. 

The Trustees agreed to wind up the Pension Plan with effect from July 8, 2018 and as a result, 
the Group has recognised any gain or loss on the settlement of the plan at July 8, 2018. 



- 87 -

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORTSt. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                                                        44 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 
 

 

 
 
23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(b) The principal actuarial assumptions used for all plans were as follows: 

 Grade II  Grades I  
 2019 2018 2019  2018 
 % % %  % 
Discount rates 7.5 7.5 7.5  7.5 
Future salary increases 4.0 4.0 4.0  4.0 
Future pension increases - - -  - 
Future promotional increases - - -  - 
Future NIS earnings increases - - 2.0  2.0 

 
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on standard mortality tables.   

(c) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are determined as follows: 

 Grade III Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Present value of defined benefit 
obligations - - (17,622) 

 
(17,034) 

 
(13,928) (13,101) 

 
(31,550) 

 
(30,135) 

Fair value of plan assets - - 22,748 21,803 16,984 16,248 39,732 38,051 
Effect of asset ceiling - - (5,126) (4,769) (3,056) (3,147) (8,182) (7,916) 
Defined benefit liabilities - - - - - - - - 
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(d) The movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: 

 Grade III  Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Defined benefit obligation as at  
January 1, 2019 - 28,268 17,034 15,026 13,101 12,773 30,135 56,067 
Current service cost - 580 433 716 98 101 531 1,397 
Interest cost - 1,121 1,229 1,102 965 934 2,194 3,157 
Members’ contributions - - 209 339 131 142 340 481 
Benefits paid - (183) (1,326) (685) (520) (707) (1,846) (1,575) 
Re-measurements - 2,765 43 536 153 (142) 196 3,159 
Plan settlements - (32,551) - - - - - (32,551) 
Defined benefit obligations as at 
December 31, 2019 - - 17,622 17,034 13,928 13,101 31,550 30,135 

 

(e) The movements in the fair value of plan assets were as follows: 

 Grade III  Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Fair value of plan assets at  
January 1, 2019 - 31,562 21,803 17,900 16,248 16,664 38,051 66,126 
Contributions paid - company - 4,518 1,066 3,920 266 412 1,332 8,850 
Contributions paid - members - - 209 339 131 142 340 481 
Interest income - 1,315 1,631 1,470 1,213 1,243 2,844 4,028 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest 
income - (4,639) (573) (1,040) (312) (1,461) (885) (7,140) 
Benefits paid - (183) (1,326) (685) (520) (707) (1,846) (1,575) 
Expense allowance - (22) (62) (101) (42) (45) (104) (168) 
Plan settlements - (32,551) - - - - - (32,551) 
Fair value of plan assets at  
December 31, 2019 - - 22,748 21,803 16,984 16,248 39,732 38,051 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(f) Composition of plan assets 

 Grade II Grade I             Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Overseas equity 3,134 2,333 - - 3,134 2,333 
Government issued nominal bonds 15,902 14,097 - - 15,902 14,097 
Corporate bonds 1,047 974 - - 1,047 974 
Cash/money market 1,103 2,658 - - 1,103 2,658 
Immediate annuity policies 1,562 1,741 - - 1,562 1,741 
Deposit administration account - - 16,984 16,248 16,984 16,248 
 22,748 21,803 16,984 16,248 39,732 38,051 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(f) Composition of plan assets (Cont’d) 

Grade I 

The asset value as at December 31, 2019 was estimated using the asset value as at October 31, 
2019 provided by the Plan’s Investment Manager - Sagicor. The value is reliant on Sagicor’s 
financial strength. 

The Grade I Plan’s assets are invested in a strategy agreed with the Grade I Plan’s Trustees which 
is largely driven by statutory constraints and asset availability. The Trustees have agreed to 
invest the Grade I Plan’s assets in Sagicor’s International Balanced Fund, which is a collective 
investment vehicle for regional pension plans investing in a diversified portfolio of bonds and 
equities. There are no asset-liability matching strategies used by the Grade I Plan. 

Grade II 

The values of the Grade II Plan assets as at December 31, 2019 were estimated using the asset 
value as at September 30, 2019 provided by the Plan’s Investment Manager (RBC) and an estimate 
of the value of the Grade II Plan’s immediate annuity policies which was calculated using the 
same assumptions used to calculate the defined benefit obligation (it is assumed that these 
annuities have not been impaired). The Investment Manager calculates the fair value of the 
Government bonds by discounting expected future proceeds using a constructed yield curve. 

All of the Grade II Plan’s government bonds were issued by the governments of countries within 
Caricom. The value of immediate annuity policies is reliant on CLICO’s financial strength and its 
ability to pay the pension secured. It is therefore exposed to CLICO’s current financial 
difficulties. 

The Grade II Plan’s assets are invested in a strategy agreed with the Grade II Plan’s Trustees 
which is largely driven by statutory constraints and asset availability. There are no asset-liability 
matching strategies used by the Grade II Plan.
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(g) The actual return on plan assets was as follows: 

 Grade III  Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Return on plan assets - (3,324) 1,058 430 901 (218) 1,959 (3,112) 

 

(h) The net pension costs recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income were as follows: 

 Grade III  Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Current service cost - 580 433 716 98 101 531 1,397 
Administration expenses - 22 62 101 42 45 104 168 
Net interest income on defined 
benefit asset - (194) - - - - - (194) 
Net pension costs - 408 495 817 140 146 635 1,371 

 

(i) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income were as follows: 

 Grade III  Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Experience losses - 7,405 616 1,576 465 1,319 1,081 10,300 
Effect of asset ceiling - (3,295) (45) 1,527 (339) (1,053) (384) (2,821) 
Total amount recognised in other 
comprehensive income - 4,110 571 3,103 126 266 697 7,479 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(j) Reconciliation of opening and closing defined benefit liabilities: 

 Grade III  Grade II Grade I Total 
 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Opening defined benefit liabilities - - - - - - - - 
Net pension cost - (408) (495) (817) (140) (146) (635) (1,371) 
Re-measurements recognised in other 
comprehensive income - (4,110) (571) (3,103) (126) (266) (697) (7,479) 
Company contributions paid - 4,518 1,066 3,920 266 412 1,332 8,850 
Closing defined benefit liabilities - - - - - - - - 
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(k) Sensitivity Analysis 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations for Grades I to II is sensitive to the assumptions 
used. The following tables summarise how the defined benefit obligations as at December 31, 
2019 would have changed as a result of a change in the assumptions used. 

Grade I 

 1% p.a. increase  1% p.a. decrease 
 $’000  $’000 
    
Discount rate (1,273)  1,595 
Future salary increases 952  (788) 

 
An increase of one year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2019 by $179. 

Grade II 

 1% p.a. increase  1% p.a. decrease  
 $’000  $’000  
     
Discount rate (1,833)  2,210  
Future salary increases 600  (548)  

 
An increase of one year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2019 by $330. 

(l) Duration 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at year end for each of the plans 
was as follows: 
 2019  2018  
Grade 1 11.6 years  10.6 years  
Grade II 12.3 years  11.8 years  
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23. Retirement Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(m) Funding Policy 

Grade I 

The Group meets the balance of the cost of funding the defined benefit pension plan and the 
Group must pay contributions at least equal to those paid by members, which are fixed. The 
funding requirements are based on regular (at least every 3 years) actuarial valuations of the 
plan and the assumptions used to determine the funding required may differ from those set out 
above. The Group expects to pay $565 to the pension plan during 2020. 

Grade II 

The Group meets the balance of the cost of funding the defined benefit pension plan and the 
Group must pay contributions at least equal to those paid by members, which are fixed. The 
funding requirements are based on regular (at least every 3 years) actuarial valuations of the 
plan and the assumptions used to determine the funding required may differ from those set out 
above. The Group expects to pay $1,022 to the pension plan during 2020. 
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24. Post-employment Medical Benefit Liabilities 

The Group contributes to a post-employment medical scheme with The Beacon Insurance Co. Limited for 
all its current employees and retirees. 

(a) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 % % 
Discount rate 7.5 7.5
Medical expense increase 5.0 5.0 

 
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on standard mortality tables. 

 
(b) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are determined as 

follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Present value of defined benefit obligations 2,220 2,114 
Fair value of plans’ assets - - 
Defined benefit liabilities 2,220 2,114 

 
(c) The movements in the present value of defined medical benefit obligations were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Defined benefit obligations as at January 1, 2,114 2,036 
Current service costs 71 71 
Interest costs 157 151 
Benefits paid (52) (50) 
Re-measurements: experience adjustments (70) (94) 
Defined benefit obligations as at December 31, 2,220 2,114 

 
(d) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Current service costs 71 71 
Interest on defined benefit obligations 157 151 
Net pension costs 228 222 

 
(e) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Experience gains (70) (94) 
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income (70) (94) 
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24. Post-employment Medical Benefit Liabilities (Cont’d) 

(f) Reconciliation of opening and closing defined benefit liabilities: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Opening defined benefit liabilities 2,114 2,036 
Net pension costs 228 222 
Re-measurement gains recognised in other comprehensive 
income (70) (94) 
Benefits paid (52) (50) 
Closing defined benefit liabilities 2,220 2,114 

 
(g) Sensitivity Analysis 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the assumptions used. The 
following tables summarise how the defined benefit obligations as at December 31, 2019 would 
have changed as a result of a change in the assumptions used. 

 1% p.a. increase 1% p.a. decrease 
 $’000 $’000 
Discount rate (335) 434 
Medical expense increases 441 (345) 

 
An increase of 1 year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2019 by $70. 

(h) Duration 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 19.1 years (2018 - 18.1 
years). 

(i) Funding Policy 

The Group insures the medical benefits for retirees with an external insurer and pays 50% of the 
retiree only premiums to the insurer as they fall due. The retiree meets the remaining 50%. In 
addition, if the retiree wishes to provide for his dependents, the retiree meets the full cost of 
this additional benefit. 

The Group expects to pay $54 to the plan in 2020. 
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25. Trade and Other Payables 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Trade payables  22,930 15,479 
Accrued expenses 11,820 11,052 
Other payables 7,192 6,680 
 41,942 33,211 
Deferred fuel costs (Note 26) 2,549 - 
 44,491 33,211 

 
Deferred fuel costs relate to fair value adjustments of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in 
Notes 4(k) and Note 26. 

The Group’s exposure to liquidity risks related to trade and other payables is disclosed in Note 36. 

26. Derivative Financial Instruments 

The underlying strategy and imperative related to the Group’s objective of its fuel price hedging 
programme is to reduce, in some measure, the price volatility to its customers caused by the existing 
arrangements whereby fuel is purchased on a regular basis at market prices.    

The Board of Directors, as part of the hedging strategy, approved a rolling 12-month hedging programme 
that commenced in January 2012 utilising Fixed Price Swaps covering up to 75% of estimated monthly 
volumes. This strategy was further expanded in December 2015 to include the use of Options.  

Under the provisions of the Electricity Supply Act (as amended) 1994, fuel prices are passed through to 
customers at cost.  

The fair value of these hedging contracts at year end as disclosed on the consolidated statement of 
financial position is as follow: 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Fixed price swaps 2,549 (11,285) 

 
27. Other Gains, Net 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 88 (24) 
Gain on disposal of financial assets 725 - 
Foreign exchange gains 88 84 
 901 60 
 

28. Finance Costs 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Interest expense on:
 -lease liabilities 83 - 
 -borrowings 5,110 4,954 
 -consumer deposits 291 277 
 -pole rental deposits 2 2 
 5,486 5,233 



ENGAGEMENT - LUCELEC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

- 98 -

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited                                                 55 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 
 

 

 
 
29. Taxation 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 

Current tax 13,621 11,470 
Deferred tax (Note 22) 108 1,192 
 13,729 12,662 

 
Reconciliation of the applicable tax charge to the effective tax charges: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Profit before taxation 51,719 47,627 
Tax at the statutory rate of 30% (2018 - 30%) 15,515 14,288 
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 247 464 
Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,138) (312) 
Tax effect of self-insurance appropriation (900) (900) 
Deferred tax asset unrecognised on tax loss 5 2 
Tax effect of financial asset impairment - (880) 
Tax charge 13,729 12,662 

 
Deferred tax on each component of other comprehensive income is as follows:  
 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
 Before tax Tax After tax Before tax  Tax  After tax 
Re-measurement of defined 
benefit pension plans (627)  188  (439) (7,385)  2,216  (5,169)  
 

30. Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year of $37,990 (2018 
- $34,965) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year of 22,920 (2018 - 
22,920). 

31. Tariff Reduction  

In accordance with the provisions of the Electricity Supply Amendment Act Nos. 12 of 2006 and 13 of 
2006, a mechanism was put into effect for the computation of the Allowable Rate of Return, based on a 
predetermined range of Return on Average Contributed Capital. 

The Allowable Rate of Return is between 2% and 7% above the cost of the most recent long-term bonds 
issued by the Government of St. Lucia on the Regional Government Securities Market, with a minimum 
return of 10%. This was equal to a range of 10% to 14.25% in respect of 2019 (2018 - 10% to 14.25%). 

In the event that the actual Rate of Return exceeds the Allowable Rate of Return, 50% of the amount in 
excess of the maximum of the range will be distributed proportionately to hotel and industrial consumers 
as a decrease in the basic energy rate based on the total kilowatt hours consumed in the preceding 
calendar year. The Minister may also, by Order, apply the decrease in the basic energy rate to consumers 
or groups of consumers in need of special protection. 
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31. Tariff Reduction (Cont’d) 

In the event that the actual Rate of Return falls below the minimum of 10%, provision is also made for 
the upward adjustment of the basic energy rate.  

32. Ordinary Dividends 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 
 $ $’000 $ $’000 
 Dividends  Dividends  
 Per share Total Per share Total 

Final - relating to 2017 - - 0.50 11,460 
Interim - relating to 2018 - - 0.45 10,314 
Final - relating to 2018 0.57 13,064 - - 
Interim - relating to 2019 0.45 10,314 - - 
 1.02 23,378 0.95 21,774 
 

The final dividend for the year 2019 had not been declared as at December 31, 2019. 

33. Related Parties  

(a) Identification of related party 

A party is related to the Group if: 
 

(i) Directly or indirectly the party: 
 Controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Group; 
 Has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or 
 Has joint control over the Group. 

 
(ii) The party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group, 
(iii) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (ii), 
(iv) The party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group or 

any Group that is a related party of the Group, 
(v) The party is an entity that is controlled or jointly controlled by a party referred to in (i) to 

(iii). 
 

(b) Related party transactions and balances 

A number of transactions have been entered into with related parties in the normal course of 
business.  These transactions were conducted at market rates, or commercial terms and 
conditions. 
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33. Related Parties (Cont’d) 

(c) Transactions with key management personnel 

In addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to executive officers and 
contributions to post-employment retirement plans on their behalf.  The key management 
personnel compensations are as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Short-term employee benefits 4,588 5,018 
Post-employment benefits 513 116 
Directors’ remuneration 337 357 
 5,438 5,491 

 
(i) Transactions with the key management personnel during the year were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Supply of electricity services 112 153 

 
(ii) Balances at the reporting date arising from transactions with key management 

personnel were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 

Supply of electricity services 8 9 
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33. Related Parties (Cont’d) 

(d) Transactions with shareholders 

The Group’s major shareholders are as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 % % 
Emera St. Lucia Ltd. 20.00 20.00 
First Citizens Bank Limited 20.00 20.00 
National Insurance Corporation 20.00 20.00 
Castries Constituency Council 15.50 15.50 
Government of Saint Lucia 10.05 10.05 
 85.55 85.55 

 
The remaining 14.45% (2018 - 14.45%) of the shares is widely held. 

(i) Transactions with shareholders during the year were as follows: 
 

Supply of Electricity Services 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
National Insurance Corporation 1,873 1,564 
Castries Constituency Council 1,569 1,966 
Government of Saint Lucia  26,119 26,901 
 29,561 30,431 

 
The Government of Saint Lucia receives a 10% (2018 - 10%) discount on electricity charges 
in respect of all accounts other than Street lighting, except where the minimum charges 
apply. 

Supply of Other Services 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Government of Saint Lucia 253 239 

 
Services Rendered to the Group 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Castries Constituency Council 5 5 

 
(ii) Balances at the reporting date arising from supply of electricity services to related 

parties during the year (Note 11) were as follows: 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
National Insurance Corporation 7 8 
Castries Constituency Council - 180 
Government of Saint Lucia  6,526 7,598 
 6,533 7,786 
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33. Related Parties  (Cont’d) 

(d) Transactions with shareholders (Cont’d) 

(iii) Balances at the reporting date arising from supply of other services to related parties 
during the year (Note 11) were as follows:  
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Government of Saint Lucia 895 880 

 
(iv) Provision for impairment losses recognised against related party balances were as 

follows: 
  Restated 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Provision for impairment 3,929 3,482 
Impairment loss/(gain)  469 (763) 
Amounts written off 22 - 

 
(v) Loans from shareholders 

 
Movements in loans from shareholders for the year and their balances at the reporting 
date were as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
National Insurance Corporation   
At beginning of year 66,240 73,565 
Repayments during year (11,044) (11,045) 
 55,196 62,520 
Interest expense 3,327 3,720 
At end of year 58,523 66,240 

 
First Citizens Bank Limited   
At beginning of year - 6,799 
Repayments during year - (6,979) 
 - (180) 
Interest expense - 180 
At end of year - - 

 58,523 66,240 
 

The above loans are fully secured (Note 19). 
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33. Related Parties  (Cont’d) 

(d) Transactions with shareholders (Cont’d) 

(v) Loans from shareholders (Cont’d) 

Finance Costs 

Details of the related finance costs are as follows: 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
National Insurance Corporation 3,327 3,720 
First Citizens Bank Limited - 210 
 3,327 3,930 

 
These charges are included in the finance costs of $5,486 (2018 - $5,233) as disclosed 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

34. Expenses by Nature 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Fuel costs   155,873   156,065 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 7)   33,551 35,541 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Note 8) 547 - 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 2,030  1,984 
Repairs and maintenance 14,061 12,830 
Research costs 24 29 
Employee benefit expenses (Note 35) 35,846 32,058 
Other operating expenses 17,515 18,242 
 259,447 256,749 
Operating expenses 225,411 223,759 
Administrative expenses 34,036 32,990 
 259,447 256,749 
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35. Employee Benefit Expenses 

 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Wages and salaries 28,167  24,565  
Pension contributions  2,313   2,465  
Medical contributions 886   831  
Other employee benefits  4,480   4,197  
 35,846 32,058 

 
The number of permanent employees at December 31, 2019 was 261 (2018 - 256). 

36. Financial Instruments 

Credit risk 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was: 
  2019 2018 
 Notes $’000 $’000 
Trade and other receivables  11 51,462 54,091 
Other financial assets 12 41,839 35,294 
Derivative financial instruments 26 2,549 - 
Cash at bank 13 48,005 17,644 
  143,855 107,029 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer 
was: 
 2019 2018 
 $’000 $’000 
Business, before deducting provision 23,613 26,681 
Residential, before deducting provision 12,365 14,228 
 35,978 40,909 
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36. Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 

Credit risk (Cont’d) 

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables was as follows: 

 $’000 
Balance at January 1, 2018 8,072 
Effect of change in accounting policy for IFRS 9 4,800 
Impairment gain recognized per IFRS 9 (107) 
Amounts written off (8) 
Balance at December 31, 2018 (Note 1 1) 12,757 
Impairment gain recognized per IFRS 9 467 
Amounts written off (2,443) 
Balance at December 31, 2019 (Note 11) 10,781 
 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of other receivables was as follows: 
 
 $’000 
Balance at January 1, 2018 1,290 
Effect of change in accounting policy for IFRS 9 (1) 
Impairment gain recognized per IFRS 9 75 
Balance at December 31, 2018 (Note 11) 1,364 
Impairment gain recognized per IFRS 9 250 
Amounts written off (120) 
Balance at December 31, 2019 (Note 11) 1,494 
 
The allowance accounts in respect of trade and other receivables are used to record impairment losses 
unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts 
considered irrecoverable are written-off against the asset directly. 
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36. Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 

Liquidity risk 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments: 

December 31, 2019           

 
 

Carrying 
Total 

contractual Contractual cash flow 

 
  

Notes 
amounts 

$’000 
cash flows 

$’000 
Under 1 year 

$’000  
1-2 years 

$’000  
2-5 years 

$’000  
>5 years 

$’000 
Non-derivative financial liabilities           
Lease liabilities 18 1,758 2,072 548 364  600  560 
Borrowings 19 111,524 128,249 21,586  21,586  61,778  23,299 
Trade and other payables 25 41,942 41,942 41,942  -  -  - 
Dividends payable  325 325 325  -  -  - 
  155,549 172,588 64,401  21,950  62,378  23,859 

 
 

December 31, 2018           

 
 

Carrying 
Total 

contractual Contractual cash flow 

 
  

Notes 
amounts 

$’000 
cash flows 

$’000 
Under 1 year 

$’000  
1-2 years 

$’000  
2-5 years 

$’000  
>5 years 

$’000 
Non-derivative financial liabilities           
Borrowings 19 102,203 121,467 16,858  16,858  50,574  37,177 
Trade and other payables 25 33,211 33,211 33,211  -  -  - 
Dividends payable  1,716 1,716 1,716  -  -  - 
  137,130 156,394 51,785  16,858  50,574  37,177 

 
The Group also has liabilities totaling $19,488 (2018 - $18,240) relating to consumer deposits (Note 20) that are refundable upon the cessation 
of the supply of services. It is not practicable to determine the contractual maturities of these liabilities, including estimated interest 
payments. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36. Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 

Fair values  

Fair values versus carrying amounts  

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the consolidated statement of financial position 
are as follows: 
  Carrying  Carrying  
  amounts Fair values amounts Fair values 
  As at As at As at As at 
  December December December December 
  31, 2019 31, 2019 31, 2018 31, 2018 
 Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Trade and other receivables 11 51,462 51,462 54,091 54,091 
Other financial assets 12 41,839 41,839 35,294 35,294 
Cash and cash equivalents 13 48,020 48,020 17,659 17,659 
Lease liabilities 5 & 18 (1,758) (1,680) - - 
Borrowings 5 & 19 (111,524) (85,946) (102,203) (94,320) 
Trade and other payables 25 (41,942) (41,942) (33,211) (33,211) 
Dividends payable  (325) (325) (1,716) (1,716) 
Derivative financial instruments 26 2,549 2,549 (11,285) (11,285) 
  (11,679) 13,977 (41,371) (33,488) 

 
The basis of determining fair values is disclosed in Note 4.  

Interest rates used for determining fair values  

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows of lease liabilities are the rate implicit in the lease or the Group’s incremental borrowing 
rate. 

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows of borrowings are based on the market interest rates at the reporting date. 

The Group also has liabilities totaling $19,488 (2018 - $18,240) relating to consumer deposits (Note 20) that are refundable upon the cessation of 
the supply of services. It is not practicable to determine the fair values of these liabilities.  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
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37. Commitments 

Capital commitments 

The Group had capital commitments at December 31, 2019 of $2,133 (2018 - $2,069). 

Operating lease commitments 

(i)    Pole rental  

The Group expects to earn annual income from pole rentals of $1,055 (2018 - $941) for the 
foreseeable future. 

38. Contingent Liabilities 

Claims 

The Group has been named a defendant to a number of claims as at December 31, 2019. While it is 
impossible to be certain of the outcome of any particular case or of the amount of any possible adverse 
verdict, the Group believes that its defences to all these various claims are meritorious on both the law 
and the facts. Having regard to the foregoing, the Group (i) does not consider it appropriate to make any 
provision in respect of any pending matters and (ii) does not believe that the ultimate outcome of these 
matters will significantly impair the Group’s financial condition. Payments if any, arising from these 
claims will be recorded in the period that the payment is made. 

Wage Negotiations 

The Group is currently negotiating certain benefits with the trade union representing the line staff for 
the triennium which ended December 31, 2016.  It is not practicable to reliably estimate the retroactive 
pay that would be due to staff once the union agreement is signed. 

Retirement Age 

In 2018 the High Court issued a judgement declaring that the retirement age of employees who entered 
service prior to August 1, 2012 and who are members of the Group’s Grade 1 Pension Scheme, is sixty 
years and that the Group has no obligation to make future contributions to the Pension Scheme on behalf 
of employees who entered service prior to August 1, 2012 and who have attained the age of sixty years. 

In January 2019, the Group was served with a Notice of Appeal against the High Court Ruling. 

It is not practicable to reliably estimate the amount that might become payable, if any, upon settlement 
of that matter. 

39. Subsidiary Companies 

 Country of Equity 
 Incorporation % 
LUCELEC Cap-Ins. Inc. Saint Lucia 100 
Energyze Holdings Inc. Saint Lucia 100 
 
On December 31, 2018, the LUCELEC Trust Company Inc. was wound up voluntarily and its net assets 
were transferred to the parent company. 
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40. Events after the Reporting Period 

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus 
(COVID19) outbreak a pandemic.  This pandemic has caused global economic disruption. In an attempt to 
curb the spread of the virus, governments around the world imposed lockdowns, mandatory quarantines 
and travel restrictions, resulting in a contraction of the global economy for 2020.  The travel restrictions 
have negatively affected the local tourism industry, the major contributor to the island’s economy, 
resulting in the closure of most of the hotels on island.   

The Group has not been spared the effects of the economic fallout and sales for the period ended August 
31, 2020 was down 8.6% on the comparative period in 2019.  Global financial markets have also 
experienced surges in volatility resulting in fluctuations in the market values of the Group’s investment 
portfolio.  These events are non-adjusting subsequent events and accordingly the financial position and 
results of operations as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 have not been adjusted to reflect 
their impact.  

The Group faces the risk of disruption in its utility operations, adverse financial results and poor liquidity. 
While the global disruption is expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty regarding the speed of 
economic recovery.  

We are unable to reliably quantify the potential effects of the pandemic on our consolidated financial 
statements for future periods, as this will depend on the effectiveness of domestic and international 
responses that are largely unpredictable.  
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Restated Restated Restated Restated
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Units Sold (kWh x 1000)  368,938  361,623  359,653  348,229  337,540  331,939  334,479  333,324  333,378  330,729 

Tariff Sales (Cents per kWh)  84.8  76.8  74.9  91.6  97.7  98.7  98.3  95.5  84.0  75.0 

Fuel Charge (Cents per kWh) (1.0) 8.4 2.7 (17.0) (6.1) (1.1)  0.4  6.6  11.8  8.1 

Operating costs (Cents per kWh)  70.3  71.0  63.9  59.4  77.4  84.1  85.2  88.8  82.8 69.1 

Summarised Balance Sheet (EC$000’s) 

Fixed Assets (Net) 337,331 342,611 327,219 332,804 338,838 334,388 336,395 328,030 250,154 273,400 

Retirement Benefit Asset  -    -    -    -    -   4,765 2,448 3,650 9,135 9,017 

Other Financial Assets  -    -    -    -   172 171 170 168 166 163 

Capital Work in Progress 28,481 16,702 33,574 15,151 15,736 17,594 21,080 33,891 50,846 16,477 

Current Assets 158,479 135,732 134,289 131,547 135,680 161,683 130,558 142,353 124,642 99,651 

Current Liabilities (66,235) (58,491) (68,999) (46,011) (50,084) (84,853) (55,418) (75,535) (68,511) (68,796)

Total 458,056 436,554 426,083 433,491 440,342 433,748 435,233 432,557 366,432 329,913 

Share Capital 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 

Retained Earnings 169,120 161,609 159,185 150,518 135,374 130,137 123,614 109,375 84,267 76,970 

Other Reserves & Consumer Contributions 57,137 50,447 49,654 45,516 43,555 29,460 23,604 21,421 40,670 38,893 

Long Term Debt 95,951 89,924 82,202 100,181 121,713 137,726 153,072 167,797 123,396 94,709 

Other Long Term Liabilities 55,685 54,411 54,879 57,113 59,537 56,262 56,780 53,801 37,937 39,178 

Total 458,056 436,554 426,083 433,491 440,342 433,748 437,233 432,557 366,432 329,913 

Summarised Income Statement (EC$000's)

Operating Revenues
    

Electricity 312,843 277,614 269,308 319,001 329,767 327,570 328,735 318,265 280,177 247,945 

Fuel Surcharge (3,656) 30,266 9,673 (59,115) (20,618) (3,671) 1,172 22,083 39,185 26,908 

Other 3,254 2,795 4,084 1,984 2,624 3,662 3,207 3,677 1,657 1,417 

Total 312,441 310,675 283,065 261,870 311,773 327,561 333,114 344,025 321,019 276,271 
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Operating Costs

Fuel  155,873  156,065  127,594  114,854  172,061  190,235  195,798  209,310  185,733  142,471 

Generation  14,809  12,566  12,437  9,989  10,943  9,948  10,708  10,918  10,587 9,404

Transmission & Distribution  21,860  20,368  21,835  18,180  15,379  15,418  16,530  15,778  19,318 17,618

Administrative & Selling  30,776  30,225  31,625  28,441  28,654  30,509  29,426  27,286  26,148 24,784

Depreciation and amortisation  36,129  37,526  36,206  35,389  34,301  33,150  32,656  32,625  34,264  34,314 

Total  259,447  256,750  229,697  206,853  261,338  279,260  285,118  295,917  276,050  228,591 

Operating Income  52,994  53,925  53,368  55,017  50,435  48,301  47,996  48,108  44,969  47,679 

Interest Expense (net)  4,650  4,514  5,278  7,626  10,789  11,368  13,163  9,389  8,761  7,618 

Other (Gains)/Losses (3,375) 1,783 (67) (45) (307) (67) (66) (67) (66) (296)

Net Income before Tax  51,719  47,628  48,157  47,436  39,953  37,000  34,899  38,786  36,274  40,357 

Taxation 13,729 12,662 13,471 13,468 11,044 10,192 9,584 9,972  10,003  11,138 

Net Income after Tax  37,990  34,966  34,686  33,968  28,909  26,808  25,315  28,814  26,271  29,219 

Other Comprehensive income (439) (5,169) 385 1,567 (6,719) 1,615 (872) 856 (192) (178)

Dividend Declared (23,378) (21,774) (23,149) (17,878) (17,190) (16,044) (8,022) (17,648) (18,107) (18,666)

Retained Earnings for Year 14,173 8,023 11,922 17,657 5,000 12,379 16,421 12,022 7,972 10,375 

Retained Earnings beginning of Year  161,609  159,185  150,518  135,374  130,137  123,614  109,375  84,267  76,970  69,338 

Transfer from/(to) Reserves (6,662) (800) (3,255) (2,513) 197 (5,856) (2,182) (5,039) (118) (189)

Tariff Reduction Reserve  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (557) (2,555)

Prior Year Adjustment  -   (4,799)  -    -    40  -    -    18,125  -  - 

Retained Earnings end of Year  169,120  161,609  159,185  150,518  135,374  130,137  123,614  109,375  84,267  76,969 

Rate of Return 12.81% 14.93% 13.41% 13.56% 11.64% 10.02% 13.42% 14.20% 15.12% 17.41%

Earnings per share (EC$) 1.66 1.53 1.51 1.48 1.26 1.17 1.10 1.26 1.15 1.27 

Dividend per share (EC$) 1.02 0.95 1.01 0.78 0.75 0.70 0.35 0.77 0.79 0.81 

Debt/Equity Ratio 27/73 26/74 26/74 30/70 35/65 39/61 43/57 47/53 40/60 36/64

Capital expenditure (EC$000's) 40,348 36,070 49,044 28,771 21,545 27,658 28,211 97,243 45,390 22,262 
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Generating Plant (kW)
Available Capacity  88,400  88,400  88,400  88,400  88,400  88,400  88,400  88,400  76,000  76,000 
Firm Capacity  68,000  68,000  68,000  68,000  68,000  68,000  68,000  68,000  55,600  55,600 
Peak Demand  62,550  60,600  61,700  60,300  59,000  58,900  59,700  59,800  60,300  59,200 
Percentage growth in peak demand 3.2% -1.8% 2.3% 2.2% 0.2% -1.3% -0.2% -0.8% 1.9% 5.9%

Sales (kWh x 1000) 
Domestic  130,156  126,916  127,732  123,839  116,133  111,922  112,743  112,272  113,505  113,757 
Commercial (including Hotels)  210,114  206,320  202,770  194,966  192,442  191,294  193,199  192,847  190,846  188,640 
Industrial  18,326  17,494  18,256  18,519  17,999  17,673  17,624  17,679  18,761  18,373 
Street Lighting  10,342  10,893  10,896  10,905  10,966  11,050  10,913  10,526  10,263  9,959 
Total Sales  368,938  361,623  359,654  348,229  337,540  331,939  334,479  333,324  333,375  330,729 

Power Station and Office Use (kWh x 1000)  12,325  12,288  13,196  13,770  13,715  13,918  14,706  14,511  14,599  14,127 
Losses (kWh x 1000)  26,658  25,317  27,450  29,432  30,013  33,574  33,791  36,948  37,234  36,033 
Units Generated/Purchased (kWh x 1000)  407,921  399,228  400,300  391,431  381,268  379,431  382,976  384,783  385,208  380,889 

Percentage growth in units generated 2.2% -0.3% 2.3% 2.7% 0.5% -0.9% -0.5% -0.1% 1.1% 4.9%
Percentage growth in sales 2.0% 0.5% 3.3% 3.2% 1.7% -0.8% 0.3% 0.0% 0.8% 5.0%
Percentage Losses (excl. prior year sales adjs.) 6.5% 6.3% 6.9% 7.5% 7.9% 8.8% 8.8% 9.6% 9.7% 9.5%

Number of Consumers at Year End 
Domestic  60,968  60,726  59,620  58,867  59,766  59,790  58,648  55,110  54,415  53,566 
Commercial (Including Hotels)  7,267  6,465  7,052  6,994  7,128  7,193  7,096  6,629  6,641  6,557 
Industrial  90  91  93  94  98  98  98  100  101 100
Street Lighting (accounts)  21  19  19  19  19  19  20  10  9 9

 68,346  67,301  66,784  65,974  67,011  67,100  65,862  61,849  61,166  60,232 
Percentage growth 1.6% 0.8% 1.2% -1.5% -0.1% 1.9% 6.5% 1.1% 1.6% 1.1%

Average Annual Consumption Per Customer (kWh)
Domestic 2,135 2,090 2,142 2,104 1,943 1,872 1,922 2,037 2,086 2,124
Commercial (including Hotels) 28,913 31,913 28,754 27,876 26,998 26,594 27,226 29,091 28,738 28,769
Industrial 203,622 192,242 196,301 197,011 183,663 180,337 179,837 176,790 185,752 183,730

Diesel fuel consumed (Imp. Gall.)  20,618,895  20,251,915 20,491,272  19,938,352 19,612,984 19,402,934 19,448,764  19,541,743 19,712,324 19,561,441
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